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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-K
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the Fiscal Year Ended April 1, 2012
Commission File No. 0-7647

HAWKINS, INC.

(Exact Name of Registrant as specified in its Chaet)

MINNESOTA 41-077129¢3
(State of Incorporation) (I.LR.S. Employer
Identification No.)

3100 East Hennepin Avenue, Minneapolit
Minnesota 55413
(Address of Principal Executive Offices! (Zip Code)

(612) 331-6910

(Registrant’s Telephone Number, Including Area Codg

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) ofe Act: COMMON STOCK, PAR VALUE $.05 PER SHARE
Name of exchange on which registered: NASDAQ Global Market
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) t¢ifie Act: NONE

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405c08#turities Act.  Yed No M

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuiegd to file reports pursuant to Section 13 ort®acl5(d) of the Act.  YesO No
™

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant ék) filed all reports required to be filed by Seweti® or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 during the preceding twelve monthsf@orsuch shorter period that the Registrant wasired to file such reports) and (2) has b
subject to such filing requirements for the past9s. Yes™ No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant ldisnitted electronically and posted on its corpokieb site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted untsto Rule 405 of Regulation Seuring the preceding 12 months (or for such srgrerioc
that the registrant was required to submit and posh files). YesM No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquiletrs pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K it contained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of the Registrant’s knowdedy definitive proxy or information statementsanporated by reference in Part Il of this
Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K4

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantleage accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, @accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of “large acceleréited” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reportirgpmpany” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer [ Accelerated filel 4|

Non-accelerated file O (Do not check if a smaller reporting compa Smaller reporting compar [
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantseell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Bxgie Act). Yes[ No M

The aggregate market value of voting stock helddny-affiliates of the Registrant on October 2, 2(the last business day of the
Registrant’s most recently completed second figoalter) was approximately $285.4 million basedrughe closing sale price for the
Registrant’s common stock on that date as repdayethe NASDAQ Stock Market, excluding all shareldhzy officers and directors of the
Registrant and by the Trustees of the Registrditiployee Stock Ownership Plan and Trust.

As of May 25, 2012, the Registrant had 10,470,3#8ses of common stock outstanding.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
Portions of our Proxy Statement for the annual mgeif shareholders to be held August 2, 2012jrarerporated by reference in Part Il.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The information presented in this Annual Reporfonm 10-K contains forward-looking statements wittiie meaning of Section 21E of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended‘tkchange Act”). These forward-looking statemedrase been made pursuant to the
provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Beh Act of 1995. These statements are not histofidacss, but rather are based on our current
expectations, estimates and projections, and diafdand assumptions. We intend words such ascipate,” “expect,” “intend,” “plan,”
“believe,” “seek,” “estimate,” “will” and similarxgressions to identify forward-looking statemeftsese statements are not guarantees of
future performance and are subject to certain riskeertainties and other factors, some of whiehteryond our control and are difficult to
predict. These factors could cause actual resultisffier materially from those expressed or foréedsn the forward-looking statements. These
risks and uncertainties are described in the askofs and elsewhere in this Annual Report on FoBrK. We caution you not to place undue
reliance on these forward-looking statements, whidkect our management’s view only as of the ddtihis Annual Report on Form 10-We
are not obligated to update these statements dicutelease the result of any revisions to themeflect events or circumstances after the
of this Annual Report on Form 10-K or to reflecé thccurrence of unanticipated events.

As used in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, exagpére otherwise stated or indicated by the contédawkins,” “we,” “us,” “the
Company,” “our,” or “the Registrant” means Hawkihs;. References to “fiscal 2013” means our figear ending March 31, 2013, “fiscal
2012” means our fiscal year ending April 1, 201f5cal 2011” means our fiscal year ended April @12, “fiscal 2010” means our fiscal year
ended March 28, 2010, and “fiscal 2009” means isgaf year ended March 29, 2009.
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PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Hawkins, Inc. distributes bulk chemicals and blemdanufactures and distributes specialty chemfoalsur customers in a wide variety
of industries. We began our operations primarilya astributor of bulk chemicals with a strong auser focus. Over the years, we have
maintained the strong customer focus and have ebgohour business by increasing our sales of vaddedspecialty chemical products,
including repackaging, blending and manufacturiagain products. In recent years, we significapitpanded the sales of our higher-margin
blended and manufactured products. We believentbatreate value for our customers through superhicgeand support, quality products,
personalized applications and our trustworthy, tiveamployees.

We currently conduct our business in two segmeénthistrial and Water Treatment. Financial inforroatiegarding these segments is
reported in our Financial Statements and Notesrtarf€ial Statements. See Items 7 and 8 of this AhReport on Form 10-K.

Industrial SegmentOur Industrial Group operates this segment ofbasiness, which specializes in providing industlmicals,
products and services primarily to the agricultergergy, electronics, food, chemical processintp pad paper, pharmaceutical, medical
device and plating industries. The group’s printgraducts are acids, alkalis and industrial aratifgrade salts.

The Industrial Group:

. Receives, stores and distributes various chemicddalk, including liquid caustic soda, sulfuriciéchydrochloric acid, phosphoric
acid, potassium hydroxide and aqua ammc

. Manufactures sodium hypochlorite (bleach), agrimalt products and certain fo-grade products, including our patented Ch-
Phos® liquid phosphate, lactates and other blended pitsd

. Repackages water treatment chemicals for our Wagatment Group and bulk industrial chemicals tbisesmaller quantities to
our customers

. Performs custom blending of certain chemicals fmtemers according to customer formulas;
. Performs contract and private label packaging fardehold chemical:

The group’s sales are concentrated primarily indik, lowa, Minnesota, Missouri, North Dakota, 8oDakota, Tennessee, and
Wisconsin while the group’s food-grade productssalel nationally. The Industrial Group relies ospecially trained sales staff that works
directly with customers on their specific needse Tinoup conducts its business primarily througlkritigtion centers and terminal operations.

During the third quarter of fiscal 2012, we puraktha 28-acre parcel of land in Rosemount, Minneatibegan construction of a new
facility on the site, which is expected to be opieral in late fiscal 2013. The site provides cayaor future business growth and lessens our
dependence on our flood-prone sites on the Miggis&iver. While we expect to transfer some blegdind manufacturing activity to the
Rosemount site, we do not intend to close any sitesurrently operate.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2011, we completieel acquisition of substantially all of the ass#t¥ertex Chemical Corporation
(“Vertex”), a manufacturer of sodium hypochloritethe central Midwest. In addition to the manufagetof sodium hypochlorite bleaches,
Vertex distributes and provides terminal serviegsiulk liquid inorganic chemicals, and contracd gmivate label packaging for household
chemicals. Its corporate headquarters are locat&d. iLouis, Missouri, with manufacturing sitesapo, lllinois, Camanche, lowa, and
Memphis, Tennessee. In connection with the acduiswe paid the sellers $27.2 million and assurrexthin liabilities of Vertex. Vertex’'s
business is part of our Industrial Group.
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In fiscal 2010, we completed two new facilitiesetxpand our ability to service our customers andifaie growth within our Industrial
Group. Our facility in Centralia, lllinois beganenations in July 2009 and primarily serves our fgoade and agriculture products businesses.
We also opened a facility in Minneapolis, Minnesatahandle bulk chemicals sold to pharmaceuticahufiacturers.

Water Treatment Segmer@ur Water Treatment Group operates this segmemtiobusiness, which specializes in providing cloatsi
equipment and solutions for potable water, municpa industrial wastewater, industrial processawand non-residential swimming pool
water. The group has the resources and flexililitireat systems ranging in size from a small sirvggll to a multi-million gallon-per-day
treatment facility.

The group utilizes delivery routes operated byemployees who serve as route driver, salesperabhighly trained technician to
deliver our products and diagnose our customergemieeatment needs. We believe that the high lefreérvice provided by these individuals
allows us to serve as the trusted water treatmgrdrefor many of the municipalities and other ousérs that we serve. We also believe the
are able to obtain a competitive cost position @mynof the chemicals sold by the Water Treatmeou@due to the volumes of these
chemicals purchased by our Industrial Group.

The group operates out of warehouses in 18 citipplging products and services to customers in Aska, lllinois, Indiana, lowa,
Kansas, Michigan, Minnesota, Missouri, Montana, fdeka, North Dakota, Oklahoma, South Dakota, TeseedNisconsin and Wyoming. \
opened one of these warehouses in fiscal 2012jmfiscal 2011, and expect to continue to invesgisting and new branches to expand the
group’s geographic coverage. Our Water Treatmeati@has historically experienced higher sales dufipril to September, primarily due to
a seasonal increase in chemicals used by munieigi@lr treatment facilities.

Discontinued Operationsln February 2009, we entered into two agreemehtr@by we agreed to sell our inventory and enteran
marketing relationship regarding the business ofRhwarmaceutical segment, which provided pharméadthemicals to retail pharmacies i
small-scale pharmaceutical manufacturers. The adims closed in May 2009 and we have no significdatigations to fulfill under the
agreements. The results of the Pharmaceutical segmge been reported as discontinued operatioogrisonsolidated financial statements
for all periods presented in this Annual Reporfanm 10-K.

Raw Materials.We have numerous suppliers, including many ofntlagor chemical producers in the United States. Weally have
written distributorship agreements or supply caestgavith our suppliers that are periodically rendwé/e believe that most of the products we
purchase can be obtained from alternative soultasdd existing relationships be terminated. Wedsmeendent upon the availability of our r
materials. In the event that certain raw matebaisome generally unavailable, suppliers may extead times or limit or cut off the supply of
materials to us. As a result, we may not be ab&ifiply or manufacture products for our custom#éfisile we believe we have adequate
sources of supply for our raw material and prodaqtirements, we cannot be sure that suppliebeionsistently available in the future
should shortages occur.

Intellectual Property.Our intellectual property portfolio is of econoniieportance to our business. When appropriate, ave lpursued,
and we will continue to pursue, patents coveringgyaducts. We also have obtained certain tradesniarkour products to distinguish them
from our competitors’ products. The patent for Gineese-Phos liquid phosphate product, which is faatured by our Industrial group, is
scheduled to expire in November 2013. We regardnedithe formulae, information and processes thagenerate and use in the conduct of
our business as proprietary and protectable urggicable copyright, patent, trademark, trade geamd unfair competition laws.

Customer ConcentrationNo single customer represents more than 10% loéedur total sales or the total sales of any ofsegments,
but the loss of our five largest customers coulkhamaterial adverse effect on our results of atpmrs. Total aggregate sales to our five
largest customers were $55.6 million in fiscal 208®4.3 million in fiscal 2011 and $72.2 millionfiscal 2012.
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Competition. We operate in a competitive industry and competie many producers, distributors and sales agdfesing chemicals
equivalent to substantially all of the productshesdle. Many of our competitors are larger tharaveeand may have greater financial
resources, although no one competitor is domimanur industry. We compete by offering quality piots at competitive prices coupled with
outstanding customer service. Because of our ltaigding relationships with many of our suppliers, ave often able to leverage those
relationships to obtain products when suppliessaegce or to obtain competitive pricing.

Geographic Information Substantially all of our revenues are generatednd long-lived assets are located in, the Uriedes.
Employees.We had 343 employees as of April 1, 2012, inclgdi8 covered by a collective bargaining agreement.

About Us. Hawkins, Inc. was founded in 1938 and incorporatedinnesota in 1955. We became a publicly-tradechpany in 1972.
Our principal executive offices are located at 3Ea8t Hennepin Avenue, Minneapolis, Minnesota.

Available Information.We have made available, free of charge, throughrdarnet website (http://www.hawkinsinc.com) dumnual
Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on FormQl@urrent Reports on Formkg-and, if applicable, amendments to those repagsoo!
as reasonably practicable after we electronicélytfiese materials with, or furnish them to, tlee@ities and Exchange Commission. Reports
of beneficial ownership filed by our directors adecutive officers pursuant to Section 16(a) offehange Act are also available on our
website. We are not including the information camtd on our website as part of, or incorporatingyireference into, this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

You should consider carefully the following risksew reading the information, including the finardigormation, contained in this
Annual Report on Form -K.

Fluctuations in the prices and availability of commdlity chemicals, which are cyclical in nature, calhave a material adverse effect on
our operations and the margins of our products.

Periodically, we experience significant and rapigtfuations in the commodity pricing of raw matésid he cyclicality of commodity
chemical markets, such as caustic soda, prima#lylts from changes in the balance between supplylamand and the level of general
economic activity. We cannot predict whether thekaes for our commodity chemicals will favorablypact our operations or whether we \
experience a negative impact due to oversupply@mer prices.

Our principal raw materials are generally purchasadler supply contracts. The prices we pay undesetitontracts generally lag the
market prices of the underlying raw material arel¢bst of inventory we have on hand generally kagdlthe current market pricing of such
inventory. The pricing within our supply contragesnerally adjusts quarterly or monthly. While weeatpt to maintain competitive pricing and
stable margin dollars, the variability in our coinventory from the current market pricing camsa significant volatility in our margins
realized. In periods of rapidly increasing marketegs, the inventory cost position will tend tofagorable to us, possibly by material amounts,
which may positively impact our margins. Conversélyperiods of rapidly decreasing market prichs,itiventory cost position will tend to be
unfavorable to us, possibly by material amountsctvimay negatively impact our margins. We do naagye in futures or other derivatives
contracts to hedge against fluctuations in futuregs. We may enter into sales contracts whersehimg prices for our products are fixed for a
period of time, exposing us to volatility in raw tedals prices that we acquire on a spot markshort-term contractual basis. We attempt to
pass commodity pricing changes to our custometsywbumay be unable to or be delayed in doing se.i@ability to pass through price
increases or any limitation or delay in our passhrgugh price increases could adversely affectpoofit margins.

6
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We are also dependent upon the availability ofraur materials. In the event that raw materialsimhort supply or unavailable, raw
material suppliers may extend lead times or limitat off supplies. As a result, we may not be ablsupply or manufacture products for some
or all of our customers. For example, in calend®®a miners’ strike in Canada significantly linditseupplies of potassium chloride, a key
component of some of our products. Due to the tiegushortage, many chemical companies were urtatdapply their customers. While we
were able to obtain a supply of the product sudfitito meet our customenseeds, we cannot be certain that such suppliesdwamibvailable i
the future should other similar shortages occundfraints on the supply or delivery of critical ravaterials could disrupt our operations and
adversely affect the performance of our business.

We operate in a highly competitive environment afaate significant competition and price pressure.

We operate in a highly competitive industry and pete with producers, manufacturers, distributos sales agents offering chemicals
equivalent to substantially all of the productsheamdle. Competition is based on several key caiténcluding product price, product
performance and quality, product availability aedwity of supply, responsiveness of product dgwelent in cooperation with customers, and
customer service. Many of our competitors are latigen we are and may have greater financial ressuAs a result, these competitors may
be better able than us to withstand changes inittonsl within our industry, changes in the pricesl availability of raw materials, changes in
general economic conditions and be able to intredasovative products that reduce demand for optbét of our products. Additionally,
competitors’ pricing decisions could compel us ¢éareéase our prices, which could adversely affectrmargins and profitability. Our ability to
maintain or increase our profitability is dependepbn our ability to offset competitive decreasethie prices and margins of our products by
improving production efficiency and volume, idewtifg higher margin chemical products and improwxgting products through innovation
and research and development. If we are unabletotain our profitability or competitive positiowe could lose market share to our
competitors and experience reduced profitability.

Demand for our products is affected by general eoaric conditions and by the cyclical nature of manythe industries we serve, which
could cause significant fluctuations in our sale®lwimes and results.

Demand for our products is affected by general esoa conditions. A decline in general economic osihess conditions in the
industries served by our customers could have anmbtdverse effect on our business. Although &liets areas traditionally considered non-
cyclical such as water treatment and food produass)y of our customers are in businesses thatyatiea in nature, such as the industrial
manufacturing, surface finishing and energy indastwhich include the ethanol and agriculture indes. Downturns in these industries could
adversely affect our sales and our financial redmtaffecting demand for and pricing of our praguc

Changes in our customers’ products or failure of pproducts to meet customers’ quality specificatiooould adversely affect our sales
and profitability.

Our chemicals are used for a broad range of agijgitaby our customers. Changes in our customeoslyzts or processes may enable
our customers to reduce or eliminate consumptich@themicals that we provide. Customers mayfaisoalternative materials or processes
that no longer require our products. Consequeittly important that we develop new products tdaeg the sales of products that mature and
decline in use.

Our products provide important performance atteub our customers’ products. If our productsttaperform in a manner consistent
with quality specifications or have a shorter ukéfel than guaranteed, a customer could seek cephent of the product or damages for costs
incurred as a result of the product failing to perf as expected. A successful claim or seriesaifnd against us could have a material adverse
effect on our financial condition and results oeogtions and could result in a loss of one or ncogomers.
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Our business is subject to hazards common to cheiwisinesses, any of which could interrupt our ghaction and adversely affect our
results of operations.

Our business is subject to hazards common to clamianufacturing, storage, handling and transportaincluding explosions, fires,
severe weather, natural disasters, mechanicatdailunscheduled downtime, transportation interousj chemical spills, discharges or releases
of toxic or hazardous substances or gases and rigker These hazards could cause personal injudyass of life, severe damage to or
destruction of property and equipment, and enviremial contamination. In addition, the occurrencenaferial operating problems at our
facilities due to any of these hazards may diminighability to meet our output goals and resuk imegative public or political reaction. Many
of our facilities are bordered by significant resitial populations which increase the risk of negapublic or political reaction should an
environmental issue occur and could lead to advaseang actions that could limit our ability to opte our business in those locations.
Accordingly, these hazards and their consequermdd bave a material adverse effect on our oparatas a whole, including our results of
operations and cash flows, both during and afteipriod of operational difficulties.

Environmental, health and safety laws and regulati® cause us to incur substantial costs and may sebjs to future liabilities.

We are subject to numerous federal, state and éoatonmental, health and safety laws and regariatin the jurisdictions in which we
operate, including those governing the dischargeotititants into the air and water, and the managerand disposal of hazardous substances
and wastes. The nature of our business exposesrisks of liability under these laws and regulati@ue to the production, storage, use,
transportation and sale of materials that can caostamination or personal injury if released itite environment. Ongoing compliance with
such laws and regulations is an important consiaerdor us and we invest substantial capital arlif significant operating costs in our
compliance efforts. Governmental regulation hashlexincreasingly strict in recent years. We expi@sttrend to continue and anticipate that
compliance will continue to require increased apmkpenditures and operating costs.

If we violate environmental, health and safety lawsegulations, in addition to being required ¢orect such violations, we could be h
liable in administrative, civil or criminal proceieds for substantial fines and other sanctionsdbatd disrupt or limit our operations.
Liabilities associated with the investigation ateboiup of hazardous substances, as well as petisfurgl property damages or natural
resource damages arising out of such hazardoutasgles, may be imposed in many situations withegémd to violations of laws or
regulations or other fault, and may also be impgsdly and severally (so that a responsible pargy be held liable for more than its share of
the losses involved, or even the entire loss). Siabhlities can be difficult to identify and thexent of any such liabilities can be difficult to
predict. We use, and in the past have used, hazaidstances at many of our facilities, and haveated, and continue to generate,
hazardous wastes at a number of our facilitiesh@ies in the past, and may in the future, be sultjectaims relating to exposure to hazardous
materials and the associated liabilities may beenedt

Costs related to a multi-employer pension plan, alhhas liabilities in excess of plan assets, may&a material adverse effect on our
financial condition and results of operations.

We participate in the Central States SoutheasSanuthwest Areas Pension Fund (“CSS” or “the Fund'tlee plan”), a multi-employer
pension plan. Our participation is pursuant to teblective bargaining agreements that expire inr&aty 2013 (the “CBAs”)Our obligation tc
continue to participate in the plan does not autarably expire upon expiration of the CBAs.

CSS'’s actuarial certification for the plan yearibeghng January 1, 2008 placed the Fund in “critstatus,” a legal term that essentially
means that the Fund’s assets were less than 68%liabilities. As a result, the plan adopted batgilitation plan. CSS’s 2011 Annual Funding
Notice stated that, as of January 1, 2011, the Femdined in critical status with a funded percgataf 58.9%, which was down from a func
percentage of
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63.4% as of January 1, 2010. This decrease inlmsgfunded percentage was despite having ad@tédpdated rehabilitation plan” that
implemented additional measures to improve theddndvel, including requiring higher employer cdmitions, establishing an increased
minimum retirement age, and actuarially adjustiagain pre-age-65 benefits for participants whoeedfter July 1, 2011. We can make no
assurances of whether or to what extent the updatebilitation plan will improve the funded statfghe plan.

We continue to contribute cash to the Fund, asirediy the CBAs. We record the required cash dmutions to the Fund as an expense
in the period incurred and recognize a liability &my contributions due and unpaid, consistent Withaccounting rules for multi-employer
defined benefit plans. In addition, we are respgaadior our proportional share of any unfunded eddienefits related to the Fund as a whole.
However, under applicable accounting rules, we ata@cord a liability for our portion of any unfued vested benefit liability until withdrawal
liability has been triggered by a partial or fulthdrawal from the plan.

A partial or full withdrawal from the plan may bdggered by circumstances beyond our control, sischnion members voting to
decertify their union. Our withdrawal from the plas the result of collective bargaining negotiaiarith the unions would also trigger
withdrawal liability. If a withdrawal from the plaoccurs, we will record our proportional share of anfunded vested benefit liability in the
period in which the withdrawal occurs. The ultimataount of the withdrawal liability assessed byplen is impacted by a number of factors,
including but not limited to the plan’s investmeaturns and benefit levels, interest rates, firandifficulty of other participating employers in
the plan such as bankruptcy, and the continuedcgsation by our company and other employers inglae.

Based upon the most recent information availaldmfthe trustees managing CSS, our share of thendetuvested benefit liability for
the plan was estimated to be approximately $7.8amiif the withdrawal had occurred in calendariy2@11, an increase from an estimate of
approximately $5.1 million if the withdrawal hadaoered in calendar year 2009. These estimates egdealated by the trustees managing (
Although we believe the most recent plan data ab&lfrom CSS was used in computing this 2011 eséinthe actual withdrawal liability
amount is subject to change based on, among dtimgst the plan’s investment returns and benefilk interest rates, financial difficulty of
other participating employers in the plan suchaskbuptcy, and continued participation by the conypand other employers in the plan, each
of which could impact the ultimate withdrawal liityi. If withdrawal liability were to be triggeredye would have the option to make payme
over a period of 20 years instead of paying th&dvawal liability in a lump sum.

If the collective bargaining process results in withdrawal from the Fund, the withdrawal woulddli take effect in the fourth quarter
fiscal 2013. We are currently unable to predictuhignate outcome of those negotiations. Howevexe are able to successfully withdraw
from the plan, we anticipate it would trigger witadal liability in an amount that would have a migteimpact on our financial results.

A number of our employees are unionized, and oursiness and results of operations could be adverséigcted if labor negotiations or
contracts further restrict our ability to maximizthe efficiency of our operations.

A significant portion of our production employeestiie Twin Cities are unionized under two sepatatkective bargaining agreements
that have expiration dates in February 2013. Aesalt, we are required to collectively bargainweges, salaries, benefits, staffing levels and
other terms with the bargaining representativetha$e employees. Our results could be materialgietly affected if those labor negotiations
further restrict our ability to maximize the effiticy of our operations, if we experience labor sih(@cluding but not limited to strikes,
lockouts, slowdowns or other business interruptmnisiterferences) in connection with labor nedatiass, or if we are unable to negotiate new
collective bargaining agreements on reasonablestaewoeptable to the affected parties.
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Our business, particularly our Water Treatment Grpuis subject to seasonality and weather conditiowhich could adversely affect our
results of operations.

Our Water Treatment Group has historically expex@ghhigher sales during April to September, pritlpatiie to a seasonal increase in
chemicals used by municipal water treatment faeditDemand is also affected by weather conditiaaither higher or lower than normal
precipitation or temperatures may affect water asagl the consumption of our products. We canrsatras/ou that seasonality or fluctuating
weather conditions will not have a material advaf§ect on our results of operations and financaidition.

The insurance that we maintain may not fully covall potential exposures.

We maintain property, business interruption andialig insurance, but such insurance may not coleisks associated with the hazards
of our business and is subject to limitations,udahg deductibles and limits on the liabilities eoed. We may incur losses beyond the limits or
outside the coverage of our insurance policiesyding liabilities for environmental remediatiom &ddition, from time to time, various types
of insurance for companies in the specialty chehmichustry have not been available on commerciatlyeptable terms or, in some cases, have
not been available at all. In the future, we maybeable to obtain coverage at current levels,camgremiums may increase significantly on
coverage that we maintain.

If we are unable to retain key personnel or attrawéw skilled personnel, it could have an adversgaut on our business.

Because of the specialized and technical natuoiobusiness, our future performance is dependettie@continued service of, and on
our ability to attract and retain, qualified managat, scientific, technical and support personfleé unanticipated departure of key members
of our management team could have an adverse iropamtir business.

We may not be able to successfully consummate feitacquisitions or integrate acquisitions into ounbiness, which could result in
unanticipated expenses and losses.

As part of our business growth strategy, we haggiiaed businesses and may pursue acquisitiongifutiire. Our ability to pursue this
strategy will be limited by our ability to identifyppropriate acquisition candidates and our firgmeisources, including available cash and
borrowing capacity. The expense incurred in consating acquisitions, the time it takes to integteacquisition or our failure to integrate
businesses successfully could result in unantiegbakpenses and losses. Furthermore, we may radii®do realize the anticipated benefits
from acquisitions.

The process of integrating acquired operationsantoexisting operations may result in unforesegeerating difficulties and may require
significant financial resources that would othemnie available for the ongoing development or egjmsmof existing operations. The risks
associated with the integration of acquisitionsude potential disruption of our ongoing business distraction of management, unforeseen
claims, liabilities, adjustments, charges and woiis, difficulty in conforming the acquired buss® standards, processes, procedures and
controls with our operations, and challenges agiéiom the increased scope, geographic diversitycamplexity of the expanded operations.

Our business is subject to risks stemming from natiudisasters or other extraordinary events outsidgieour control, which could
interrupt our production and adversely affect ouesults of operations.

Natural disasters have the potential of interrugptor operations and damaging our properties, wbiehd adversely affect our business.
Since 1963, flooding of the Mississippi River haguired the Compang'terminal operations to be temporarily shifted @lits buildings seve
times, including three times since the spring df®0Ne can give no assurance that flooding or ath&sral disasters will not recur or that tr
will not be material damage or interruption to operations in the future from such disasters.
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Chemical-related assets may be at greater risktofd terrorist attacks than other possible tarigpetise United States. Federal law
imposes new site security requirements, specificall chemical facilities, which require increasegital spending and increase our overhead
expenses. New federal regulations have already d@@pted to increase the security of the transpontaf hazardous chemicals in the United
States. We ship and receive materials that arsifie as hazardous and we believe we have met tieggliirements, but additional federal and
local regulations that limit the distribution ofzemdous materials are being considered. Bans oement of hazardous materials through
certain cities could adversely affect the efficig€ our logistical operations. Broader restricBam hazardous material movements could lead
to additional investment and could change wherevamat products we provide.

The occurrence of extraordinary events, includintgrie terrorist attacks and the outbreak or edoalaf hostilities, cannot be predicted,
but their occurrence can be expected to negatafédyet the economy in general, and specificallyrttakets for our products. The resulting
damage from a direct attack on our assets, orsagset by us, could include loss of life and prypgamage. In addition, available insurance
coverage may not be sufficient to cover all of dlaenage incurred or, if available, may be prohibitvexpensive.

We may not be able to renew our leases of land vehfeur of our operations facilities reside.

We lease the land where our three main terminal$ogated and where a significant manufacturingtgklocated. We do not have
guaranteed lease renewal options and may not ka@btnew our leases in the future. Our curreagdeenewal periods extend out to 2014
(one lease), 2018 (two leases) and 2029 (one leHse)failure to secure extended lease terms oroaeyf these facilities may have a material
adverse impact on our business, as they are whagmificant portion of our chemicals are manufaetland where the majority of our bulk
chemicals are stored. While we can make no assesabased on historical experience and anticidfatede needs, we intend to extend these
leases and believe that we will be able to renemleases as the renewal periods expire. If we aable to renew three of our leases (two relate
to terminals and one to manufacturing) any propestyaining on the land becomes the property ofebgor, and the lessor has the option to
either maintain the property or remove the propattyur expense. These asset retirement obligagiotithe cost to relocate our operations
could have a material adverse effect on our resfiltperations and financial condition.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We own our principal location, which consists opegximately 11 acres of land in Minneapolis, Minois with six buildings containing
a total of 177,000 square feet of office and wauslecspace primarily used by our Industrial Groupr. @incipal office is located in one of
these buildings, at 3100 East Hennepin Avenue. 8¥e Installed sprinkler systems in substantiallpfbur warehouse facilities for fire
protection. We carry customary levels of insuratmeering the replacement of damaged property.
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In addition to the facilities described previousiyr other facilities are described below. We haithat these facilities, together with
those described above, are adequate and suitaliteefpurposes they serve. Unless noted, eaclityasibwned by us and is primarily used as
office and warehouse.

Approx.
Group Location Square Fee
Industrial St. Paul, MN(1 32,00(
Minneapolis, MN(2 29,00(
Centralia, 1L(3) 77,00(
Camanche, IA(4 95,00(
St Louis, MO(4) 6,00(C
Dupo, IL(4) 64,00(
Rosemount, MN(5 63,00(
Water Treatmer Fargo, ND 20,00(
Fond du Lac, W 24,00(
Washburn, NC 14,00(
Billings, MT 9,00(
Sioux Falls, SC 27,00(
Rapid City, SC 9,00
Peotone, IL(6 18,00(
Superior, WI 17,00(
Slater, 1A 12,00(
Lincoln, NE(6) 16,00(
Eldridge, IA 6,00(
Columbia, MO(6) 14,00(
Garnett, K< 18,00(
Ft. Smith, AR(6) 17,00(
Muncie, IN(7) 12,00(
Centralia, 1L(7) 39,00(
Industrial and Water Treatme St. Paul, MN(8 59,00(
Memphis, TN(4) 41,00(

(1) Ourterminal operations, located at two sites goosfie sides of the Mississippi River, are madefujree buildings, outside stora
tanks for the storage of liquid bulk chemicals Julding caustic soda, as well as numerous smaltdstéor storing and mixing chemicals.
The land is leased from the Port Authority of thgy©f St. Paul, Minnesota. The applicable leasgsuntil December 2013, at which
time we have an option to renew the leases fodditianal five-year period on the same terms anuld@mns subject to renegotiation of
rent.

(2) This facility is leased from a third party to seouer bulk pharmaceutical custome

(3) This facility includes 10 acres of land locatedCientralia, lllinois owned by the company. The filgibecame operational in July 20
and primarily serves our fo-grade products business. Prior to fiscal 2011fdd#ity was shared with the Water Treatment Gr¢

(4) The acquisition of Vertex in fiscal 2011 includedffice building located in St Louis, Missouri anshnufacturing and warehou
facilities located in Memphis, Tennessee; Camanicveg; and Dupo, Illinois. All of the facilities dland are owned by the company
with the exception of the land in Dupo, Illinoishieh is leased from a third party. The lease ransugh May, 2014. The facility in
Memphis is shared between the Industrial and Weieastment Groups

(5) In October 2011 we acquired a-acre parcel of land located in Rosemount, MN. Wgabeconstruction of a new facility on the ¢
during the third quarter of fiscal 2012 and expetd be operational in late fiscal 201

(6) This facility is leased from a third part

(7) This facility was purchased in fiscal 20:
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(8) Our Red Rock facility, which consists of a 59,000ar¢foot building located on approximately 10 acre$aofd, has outside stora
capacity for liquid bulk chemicals, as well as nuows smaller tanks for storing and mixing chemic@lge land is leased from the Port
Authority of the City of St. Paul, Minnesota ane flease runs until 202

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On November 3, 2009, ICL Performance Products,“LL(), a chemical supplier to us, filed a lawsuit in theitdd States District Cot
for the Eastern District of Missouri, assertingduie of a contract for the sale of 75% purified ghasic acid in 2009 (the “2009 Contract”).
ICL seeks to recover $7.3 million in damages aredjpdgment interest, and additionally seeks toverds costs and attorneys’ fees. ICL also
claimed that we breached a contract for the sa#b®6 purified phosphoric acid in 2008 (the “200&h€act”). ICL has since dropped its claim
for breach of the 2008 Contract. We have counteneld against ICL alleging that ICL falsely claimdhave a shortage of raw materials that
prevented it from supplying us with the contraagedntity of 75% purified phosphoric acid for 2008e claim that ICL used this alleged
shortage and the threat of discontinued shipmdrit§% purified phosphoric acid to force us to pagreased prices for the remainder of 2008,
and to sign the 2009 Contract. Based on this allegaduct, we have brought four alternate causestidn including: (1) breach of contract,
(2) breach of the implied covenant of good faitld &ir dealing, (3) negligent misrepresentatiord é4) intentional misrepresentation. We seek
to recover $1.5 million in damages, and additionaélek to recover punitive damages, pre- and paigfapent interest, and our costs and
attorneys’ fees. After the completion of discovdrgth parties moved for summary judgment in thewof. On February 7, 2012, the Court
denied both parties’ motions for summary judgm&pt. moved for reconsideration of parts of its matior summary judgment. On April 24,
2012, the Court granted ICL’s motion for reconsadien in part, and denied it in part. In its A4, 2012 Memorandum and Order, the Court
interpreted the meaning and effect of a specifiapd in the 2009 Contract, and concluded thateif2009 Contract is a legally enforceable
contract, Hawkins remained obligated to purcha$é 60its requirements for 75% purified phosphoiagrom ICL in 2009. Trial is
scheduled to begin on July 23, 2012. We are net bpredict the ultimate outcome of this litigatidout legal proceedings such as this can
result in substantial costs and divert our manage¢siattention and resources, which may have anmhtalverse effect on our business and
results of operations, including cash flows.

We are a party from time to time in other legalgeredings arising in the ordinary course of ourhess. To date, none of the litigation
has had a material effect on us.

ITEM 4.  MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE COMPANY S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS, AND$SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Quarterly Stock Data High Low
Fiscal 201z

4t Quarter $42.9: $34.3¢

3rdQuarter 40.8¢ 29.0¢

2 ndQuarter 38.6¢ 30.1¢

1stQuarter 47.4¢ 33.3(
Fiscal 2011

4 thQuarter $46.8¢ $36.0(

3rdQuarter 50.1¢ 34.0:

2 ndQuarter 37.4¢ 24.21

1stQuarter 29.5( 23.1¢
Cash Dividends Declarec Paid
Fiscal 2012

1stQuarter $0.32
Fiscal 201z

4t Quarter $ 0.3

3rdQuarter $0.32

2 ndQuarter $ 0.3

1 stQuarter $0.3C
Fiscal 2011

4 th Quarter $ 0.3C

3 rdQuarter $0.4C

2 ndQuarter $ 0.4C

1 stQuarter $0.2¢

Our common shares are traded on The NASDAQ Glokzakst under the symbol “HWKN.The price information represents closing
prices as reported by The NASDAQ Global Market.oA#\pril 1, 2012, shares of our common stock weekl by approximately
501 shareholders of record.

We first started paying cash dividends in 1985 laane continued to do so since. In July 2010, ingedion of the Company’s strong
financial performance in fiscal 2010, its stronglt@osition and no debt, the Board of Directorsiatized a special dividend of $0.10 per st
in addition to a regular semi-annual cash divideh$i0.30 per share for July 2010. Future dividenls will be dependent upon our
consolidated results of operations, financial posjtcash flows and other factors, and will be eatdd by our Board of Directors.
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The following graph compares the cumulative tokelrgholder return on our common shares with theutatime total returns of the
NASDAQ Industrial Index, the NASDAQ Composite Indétxe Russell 2000 Index and the Standard & 's (“S&P”) Small Cap 600 Index
for our last five completed fiscal years. The gragbumes the investment of $100 in our stock, tR8DAQ Industrial Index, the NASDAQ
Composite Index, the Russell 2000 Index and the S&fll Cap 600 Index on March 30, 2007, and reitmvest of all dividends.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Selected financial data for the Company is preskiméhe table below and should be read in conjanatith Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Result®Ogierations included in Item 7 and the Company’sotdated financial statements and
notes thereto included in Item 8 herein.

Fiscal Years
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(In thousands, except per share data)
Sales from continuing operatio $343,83:  $297,64: $257,09¢ $284,35¢ $186,66:
Gross profit from continuing operatio 65,86¢ 61,90: 64,44 62,42( 38,52¢
Income from continuing operatiol 21,62¢ 20,31 23,73¢ 23,42 8,48¢
Basic earnings per common share from continuingaijoss 2.0¢ 1.9¢ 2.32 2.2¢ 0.8:
Diluted earnings per common share from continuipgrations 2.0¢ 1.9¢ 2.31 2.2¢ 0.8t
Cash dividends declared per common sl 0.64 0.7C 0.6€ 0.52Z 0.4¢
Cash dividends paid per common st 0.62 0.6¢ 0.64 0.5C 0.4€
Total asset $204,08.  $185,00¢ $160,29: $136,29(  $108,94:
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following is a discussion and analysis of anaficial condition and results of operations fecéil 2012, 2011 and 2010. This
discussion should be read in conjunction with timafcial Statements and Notes to Financial Staté&sriealuded in Item 8 of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

Overview

We derive substantially all of our revenues from $lale of bulk and specialty chemicals to our gusts in a wide variety of industries.
We began our operations primarily as a distribofdsulk chemicals with a strong customer focus. Qke years we have maintained the st
customer focus and have expanded our businessiBaging our sales of value-added specialty chémioducts, including repackaging,
blending and manufacturing certain products. Ien¢gears, we significantly expanded the salesioh@gher-margin blended and
manufactured products, including our food-gradedpobs.

We have continued to invest in growing our businBssing fiscal 2012, we purchased a 28-acre pafckdnd in Rosemount, Minnesota
and began construction of a new facility on the,sithich is expected to be operational in lateali®©13. The site provides capacity for future
business growth and lessens our dependence ofoodrdrone sites on the Mississippi River. While expect to transfer some blending and
manufacturing activity to the Rosemount site, wendbintend to close any sites we currently operate

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2011, we completieel acquisition of substantially all of the ass#t¥ertex, for approximately
$27.2 million. In addition to the manufacture oflson hypochlorite bleaches, Vertex distributes pravides terminal services for bulk liquid
inorganic chemicals, and contract and private lplekaging for household chemicals. We believeatizpiisition strengthens our market
position in the Midwest. Operating results of Varsge included in our consolidated results of opiena from the date of acquisition in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K as part of our Indussegment. See Note 2 to the Consolidated FinaSt&iements for further information.

In fiscal 2010, we completed two new facilitiesetgpand our ability to service our customers andifaie growth within our Industrial
Group. Our facility in Centralia, lllinois beganenations in July 2009 and primarily serves our fgoade and agriculture products businesses.
We also opened a facility in Minneapolis, Minnesatahandle bulk chemicals sold to pharmaceuticahufiacturers.

We opened one new branch for our Water Treatmeotiisin fiscal 2012 and two new branches in fis€dl?and expect to continue to
invest in existing and new branches to expand oateWTreatment Group’s geographic coverage. Theatdeese branch expansions is not
expected to be material. In addition, we have $ielely added route sales personnel to certain iegdtater Treatment Group branch office:
spur growth within our existing geographic coveragea.

In February 2009, we agreed to sell our inventony @ntered into a marketing agreement regardingukaess of our Pharmaceutical
segment, which provided pharmaceutical chemicatstal pharmacies and smaltale pharmaceutical manufacturers. The transactised ir
May 2009 and we have no significant obligationfutéll under the agreement. The results of the fRteceutical segment have been reporte
discontinued operations in our Consolidated Firdr&fatements for all periods presented in thisuahiReport on Form 10-K.

Our financial performance in fiscal 2012 was highted by:

. Sales from continuing operations of $343.8 milliarl,5.5% increase from fiscal 20:

. Gross profit from continuing operations of $65.9liom or 19.2% of sales, a $4.0 million increaseinss profit dollars from fisc:
2011;
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. Net cash provided by operating activities of $38ilion; and
. Cash and cash equivalents and investments avaftatdale were $45.9 million as of the end of fls2@12.

We seek to maintain relatively constant gross pdfilars on each of our products as the cost ofaw materials increase or decrease.
Since we expect that we will continue to experieftiegtuations in our raw material costs and reaglfprices in the future, we believe that gt
profit dollars is the best measure of our profiiabfrom the sale of our products. If we mainta@latively stable gross profit dollars on each of
our products, our reported gross profit percenteifjalecrease when the cost of the product increasel will increase when the cost of the
product decreases.

We use the last in, first out (“LIFO”) method oflueng the vast majority of Hawkins’ inventory, whicauses the most recent product
costs to be recognized in our income statementvahation of LIFO inventory for interim periodsligsed on our estimates of fiscal year-end
inventory levels and costs. The LIFO inventory \agion method and the resulting cost of sales angistent with our business practices of
pricing to current commodity chemical raw matepetes. Our LIFO reserve increased by $1.6 milliofiscal 2012 primarily due to volumes
and mix of commodity chemicals in inventory at #rel of the year. The increased reserve decreasedmarted gross profit for the year. Our
LIFO reserve increased by $3.9 million in fiscall2@ue to rising costs and higher inventory voluwefiand at year-end maintained to meet
customer requirements during an anticipated fldduks increase in the reserve decreased our repgréss profit in fiscal 2011.

Results of Operations
The following table sets forth certain items froor statement of income as a percentage of salesgegiod to period:

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

2012 2011 2010
Sales 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%
Cost of sale: (80.6% (79.2)% (74.9%
Gross profi 19.2% 20.8% 25.1%
Selling, general and administrative exper (9.0% (10.1)% (10.0%
Operating incom 10.2% 10.7% 15.1%
Investment incom 0.1% 0.1% 0.1%
Income from continuing operations before incomes& 10.2% 10.8% 15.2%
Provision for income taxe (4.0% (4.0% 6.1)%
Income from continuing operatiol 6.3% 6.8% 9.1%
Income from discontinued operations, net of 0.2% 0.C% 0.1%
Net income 6.6% 6.8% 9.2%

Fiscal 2012 Compared to Fiscal 2011
Sales

Sales increased $46.2 million, or 15.5%, to $343ilBon for fiscal 2012, as compared to sales d®®%B million for fiscal 2011. Vertex,
which we acquired during the fourth quarter of 20ddntributed $32.9 million of the increase in sdter fiscal 2012. We also experienced
increased sales as a result of higher selling pucee to increased commodity chemical prices. Sdlbalk chemicals, including caustic soda,
were approximately 23% of sales compared to appratély 20% in the previous year. The increaseérbilik
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chemical sales percentage for fiscal 2012 was pilyrettributable to a full year of Vertex saleslvmes compared to a partial year of sales
volumes in fiscal 2011.

Industrial Segmentindustrial segment sales increased $42.7 milbor20.5%, to $251.4 million for fiscal 2012. Verteantributed $32.
million of the increase in sales for fiscal 2012e kperienced higher selling prices due to incretasenmodity chemical prices.

Water Treatment Segmen/ater Treatment segment sales increased $3.Dmibir 3.9%, to $92.4 million for fiscal 2012. Téales
increase was primarily attributable to increasddssaolumes related to manufactured and speciakynical products and higher bulk chemical
selling prices due to increased commodity chenmidaks for those products.

Gross Profit

Gross profit was $65.9 million, or 19.2% of safes,fiscal 2012, as compared to $61.9 million, 6r&8% of sales, for fiscal 2011. The
LIFO method of valuing inventory negatively impat@gross profit by $1.6 million for fiscal 2012 pramily due to volumes and mix of
commodity chemicals in inventory at the end ofykar. In the prior year, LIFO negatively impactedss profit by $3.9 million due to rising
raw material costs and higher inventory volume$and at year-end maintained to meet customer &geints during an anticipated flood.

Industrial SegmentGross profit for the Industrial segment was $4ilion, or 16.1% of sales, for fiscal 2012, as @ared to
$36.9 million, or 17.7% of sales, for fiscal 20The increase in gross profit dollars resulted ftbmaddition of the Vertex business to this
segment, partially offset by lower selling pricesedo competitive pricing pressures and lower v@sanThe LIFO method of valuing inventory
negatively impacted gross profit in this segmen$byb million in fiscal 2012 and $2.9 million irstial 2011.

Water Treatment Segmen&ross profit for the Water Treatment segment vasSmillion, or 27.6% of sales, for fiscal 2018, a
compared to $25.0 million, or 28.1% of sales, fecdl 2011. The increase in gross profit dollars wamarily due to increased sales volume
the latter half of the fiscal 2012 more than ofiiegt lower volumes resulting from unfavorable wesatbonditions during the first half of the
year and lower selling prices due to competitivieipg pressures. The LIFO method of valuing invepteegatively impacted gross profit
this segment by $0.1 million in fiscal 2012 and1$tillion in fiscal 2011.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative (“SG&A") expeasvere $30.8 million, or 9.0% of sales, for fis2@l2, as compared to
$29.9 million, or 10.1% of sales, for fiscal 20The increase was primarily due to the additionxgfemses related to the Vertex business,
which we acquired in the fourth quarter of fisc@ll2, partially offset by one-time costs we incurirediscal 2011 but did not experience in
fiscal 2012. Fiscal 2011 included approximatelyo$illion in expense as a result of the death dhJddawkins, our former Chief Executive
Officer, through payments due under his retentionus agreement, and the accelerated vesting pféngously granted performance-based
restricted stock units and stock options as wedisroximately $0.7 million in Vertex acquisitiongts.

Operating Income

Operating income was $35.1 million, or 10.2% ogsafor fiscal 2012, as compared to $32.0 millmm]0.7% of sales, for fiscal 2011. A
$3.4 million increase in operating income for thdustrial segment resulted primarily from the addibf the Vertex business, partially offset
by a $0.3 million decrease in operating incomettierWater Treatment segment. Both segments wedinely impacted by the LIFO method
of valuing inventory in fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2011
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Investment Income

Investment income was $0.1 million for fiscal 2Cr®d $0.3 million in fiscal 2011. The decrease irestment income was primarily due
to lower cash and investment balances.

Provision for Income Taxes

Our effective income tax rate was 38.6% for fist@al2 compared to 37.1% for fiscal 2011. The higtifactive tax rate for fiscal 2012
was primarily due to decreased permanent tax bsreefd somewhat higher effective state tax rates.

Fiscal 2011 Compared to Fiscal 2010
Sales

Sales increased $40.5 million, or 15.8%, to $2%7ilBon for fiscal 2011, as compared to sales dd#%2 million for fiscal 2010. The sal
increase was primarily driven by higher sales ohufactured and specialty chemical products and sdraehigher selling prices for bulk
chemicals due to increasing commodity chemicalsc@les of these bulk products were approxim&@dyg of sales compared to
approximately 19% in the previous year. Additiopathe acquisition of Vertex, which closed in tloeifth quarter of fiscal 2011, contributed
$9.2 million in revenue.

Industrial Segmentindustrial segment sales increased $33.8 millbori,9.3%, to $208.7 million for fiscal 2011. Thdesaincrease was
primarily attributable to higher sales of manufaetland specialty chemical products and somewlgaehiselling prices for commodity bulk
chemicals due to increased commodity chemical cbseddition, Vertex revenues of $9.2 million areluded in fiscal 2011 Industrial
segment sales.

Water Treatment Segment/ater Treatment segment sales increased $6. omibir 8.2%, to $88.9 million for fiscal 2011. Téales
increase was primarily attributable to increasddssaf manufactured and specialty chemical products

Gross Profit

Gross profit was $61.9 million, or 20.8% of sales,fiscal 2011, as compared to $64.4 million, 6ri26 of sales, for fiscal 2010. The
LIFO method of valuing inventory negatively impattigross profit by $3.9 million for fiscal 2011 dteeincreased raw material costs and
higher volumes of inventory at year end maintaittecheet customer requirements during an anticipded. In the prior year, LIFO
positively impacted gross profit by $12.6 millionalto decreases in certain raw material costs gluiniait period.

Industrial SegmentGross profit for the Industrial segment was $36ilfion, or 17.7% of sales, for fiscal 2011, as gared to
$37.3 million, or 21.3% of sales, for fiscal 20@bmpetitive pricing pressures and increased operaltioverhead costs contributed to the Ic
gross profit levels in the Industrial segment. Tdrisup incurred $0.3 million of overhead costs asged with flood control efforts in the fou
quarter of fiscal 2011. These reductions in gras$itpvere partially offset by higher sales of hgghmargin manufactured and specialty
chemical products. The LIFO method of valuing ineen negatively impacted gross profit in this segirtgy $2.9 million in fiscal 2011, as
compared to positively impacting gross profit bypo$Lmillion in fiscal 2010.

Water Treatment Segmen&ross profit for the Water Treatment segment vas®million, or 28.1% of sales, for fiscal 201§, a
compared to $27.2 million, or 33.0% of sales, fecdl 2010. The decrease in gross profit dollars préamarily due to competitive pricing
pressures and increased operational overhead pastiglly offset by increased sales. Additionatlye LIFO method of valuing inventory
negatively impacted gross profit in this segmen$kbyl million in fiscal 2011, as compared to pesily impacting gross profit by $2.4 million
in fiscal 2010.
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Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative (“SG&A") expeasncreased $4.3 million to $29.9 million, or 2.bf sales, for fiscal 2011, as
compared to $25.6 million, or 10.0% of sales, fecdl 2010. We incurred approximately $1.0 milliaradditional expense as a result of the
death of John Hawkins, our former Chief Executiféder, through payments due under his retentionusoagreement and the accelerated
vesting of his previously granted performance-basstticted stock units and stock options. Othend driving the increased expenses include
acquisition costs of approximately $0.7 millionatihg to the Vertex acquisition in addition to héglequity incentive plan costs and litigation
defense costs.

Operating Income

Operating income was $32.0 million, or 10.7% o&safor fiscal 2011, as compared to $38.8 millimnl5.1% of sales, for fiscal 2010.
The decrease in operating income was the resuétdefced gross profits and increased SG&A expeBs®hb. reporting segments saw a decline
in their gross profit dollars due to competitivécprg pressures and higher operational overheai$.cBeth segments were also negatively
impacted by the LIFO method of valuing inventoryistal 2011.

Investment Income
Investment income was $0.3 million for fiscal 2CGirid fiscal 2010.

Provision for Income Taxes

Our effective income tax rate was 37.1% for fis2@l1l compared to 39.3% for fiscal 2010. The lowkzrctive tax rate for fiscal 2011
was primarily due to increased permanent tax diffees, lower taxable income levels and somewhatrieffective state tax rates.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash provided by operating activities in fiscal 2@las $33.7 million compared to $28.5 million iscal 2011 and $38.8 million in fiscal
2010. The increase in cash provided by operatitigitees in fiscal 2012 from fiscal 2011 was printardue to increases in net income and
depreciation and amortization. Higher working calpitalances used $1.9 million in cash in fiscal26@mpared to cash used of $0.4 million
for working capital in fiscal 2011. The net increas working capital balances in fiscal 2012 wamrily due to increasing commodity
chemical costs and the resulting increase in gefiices, which resulted in an increase in tradeiwables, lower accounts payable and income
tax payable balances due to the timing of payménis.to the nature of our operations, which inctuderchases of large quantities of bulk
chemicals, the timing of purchases can resultgnitcant changes in working capital investment #melresulting operating cash flow.
Historically, our cash requirements for working itabincrease during the period from April throujbvember as caustic soda inventory levels
increase as the majority of barges are receiveagltinis period.

Cash used in financing activities was $3.7 milliordiscal 2012 compared to $6.9 million in fisc&l1Z2 and $6.6 million in fiscal 2010.
The decrease in cash used in financing activitidscal 2012 was primarily due to proceeds from élercise of employee stock options,
recognition of excess tax benefits from share-baseapensation and proceeds from the issuance oshaves of common stock for the
Company’s employee stock purchase plan.

Cash and investments available-for-sale of $45IBomiat April 1, 2012 increased by $8.5 million e@mpared with April 3, 2011,
primarily due to cash generated from operationscgeds from the exercise of employee stock opaosproceeds from the issuance of new
shares of common stock through the Company’s emegleyock purchase plan, partially offset by capitglenditures and dividend payments.
Investments available-for-sale as of April 1, 2@h2i April 3, 2011 consisted of certificates of da@pwith maturities ranging from three
months to two years.
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Capital Expenditures

Capital expenditures were $20.1 million in fisc@ll2, $12.4 million in fiscal 2011 and $8.3 millionfiscal 2010. Significant capital
expenditures in fiscal 2012 consisted of approxatya$12.1 million related to business expansion pmodess improvement projects including
the new facility in Rosemount, Minnesota and Wateratment segment expansion, $2.2 million for raetpul and safety improvements and
$3.0 million for other facility improvements andugnable containers. We expect that recurring ehpitpenditures and safety improvements,
facilities improvements and returnable containgrgiscal 2013 will be comparable to the spendimd@iscal 2012. We are projecting increased
total capital spending in fiscal 2013 as comparét fiscal 2012, as we complete the Rosemountifg@hd make other expansion
investments. Total capital spending in fiscal 2&18urrently projected to be approximately $30 imill We expect cash balances and our cash
flows from operations will be sufficient to fundocash requirements in fiscal 2013.

Dividends

During the second quarter of fiscal 2012, our Ba#rBirectors increased our semi-annual cash diddey 6.7% to $0.32 per share from
$0.30 per share. We first started paying cash didg in 1985 and have continued to do so sinceré&dividend levels will be dependent uj
our results of operations, financial position, clistvs and other factors, and will be evaluatedhy Board of Directors.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements.

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments
The following table provides aggregate informatidiout our contractual payment obligations and #éds in which payments are due:

Payments Due by Perioc

More than
Contractual Obligation 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 5 Years Total
(In thousands)
Operating lease obligatiol $70¢  $72& 71z $657 $59¢ $ 3,381 $6,78(

Critical Accounting Policies

In preparing the financial statements, we follovslgenerally accepted accounting principles (“GAAHhe preparation of these
financial statements requires us to make estinatdgudgments that affect the reported amountsssta, liabilities, sales and expenses, and
related disclosure of contingent assets and ltasliWe re-evaluate our estimates on an on-gaisisbOur estimates are based on historical
experience and on various other assumptions thdiaieved to be reasonable under the circumstaAcésal results may differ from these
estimates under different assumptions and conditidfe consider the following policies to involves tinost judgment in the preparation of our
financial statements.

Revenue Recognitior— We recognize revenue when there is evidencetleatustomer has agreed to purchase the proteqgbrice and
terms of the sale are fixed, the product has skippel title passes to our customer, performancetasred, and collection of the receivabl
reasonably assured.

LIFO Reserve— Inventories, with the exception of Vertex invenes, are primarily valued at the lower of costrarket with cost being
determined using the LIFO method. We may incurificant fluctuations in our gross margins due priilyato changes in the cost of a single,
large-volume component of our inventory. The po€¢his inventory component may fluctuate dependinghe balance between supply and
demand. Management reviews the LIFO reserve orageyly basis. Vertex inventories are valued atldheer of cost or market with cost bei
determined using the FIFO method.

21



Table of Contents

Goodwill— Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of aeduiusinesses over the fair value of identifiahfegible net assets and
identifiable intangible assets purchased. Goodwiksted at least annually for impairment, angs$sed for impairment more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate tlaadhet might be impaired. The impairment teséifopmed using a two-step process. In the
first step, the fair value of the reporting unic@mpared with the carrying amount of the reporting, including goodwill. If the estimated fair
value is less than the carrying amount of the riapgunit, an indication that goodwill impairmentigts and a second step must be complet
order to determine the amount of the goodwill innpegint, if any, which should be recorded. In theoselcstep, an impairment loss would be
recognized for any excess of the carrying amouth®feporting unit's goodwill over the implied faialue of that goodwill. The implied fair
value of goodwill is determined by allocating tladr fvalue of the reporting unit in a manner simitaa purchase price allocation. The fair ve
of the reporting unit is determined using a disd¢edrcash flow analysis. Projecting discounted fizash flows requires us to make significant
estimates regarding future revenues and expens@scied capital expenditures, changes in workagjtal and the appropriate discount rate.
The projections also take into account severabfadnhcluding current and estimated economic tremdsoutlook, costs of raw materials,
consideration of our market capitalization in comgxan to the estimated fair values of our reportings determined using discounted cash
flow analyses and other factors which are beyorrccountrol.

We completed step one of our annual goodwill impaint evaluation during the fourth quarter of fis2@l2 and determined that our
reporting units’ fair value substantially exceedle€ir carrying value. Accordingly, step two of tingpairment analysis was not required. We
also completed an impairment test of infinite-liitangible assets during the fourth quarter, inalfthe fair value exceeded the carrying
amount. Additionally, no impairment charges wermguieed for fiscal 2011 or 2010.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets- We review the recoverability of long-lived asstd be held and used, such as property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets subject to amédizavhen events or changes in circumstances dhatiindicate the carrying value of the
asset or asset group may not be recoverable, suystolnged industry downturn or significant rediores in projected future cash flows. The
assessment of possible impairment is based onbidlity &0 recover the carrying value of the asseasset group from the expected future pre-
tax cash flows (undiscounted) of the related opamat If these cash flows are less than the cagryalue of such asset or asset group, an
impairment is recognized equal to the amount byctviine carrying value exceeds the fair value ofdheg-lived assets. The measurement of
impairment requires us to estimate future cashdland the fair value of long-lived assets. Sigaificjudgments and assumptions are required
in the forecast of future operating results usetthénpreparation of the estimated future cash fldls periodically review the appropriateness
of the estimated useful lives of our long-livedetssChanges in these estimates could have a alaHgct on the assessment of long-lived
assets subject to amortization. There were nodrigg events that required long-lived assets tevauated for impairment during fiscal 2012.

Income Taxes— In the preparation of our financial statementanagement calculates income taxes. This inclusteéaating the current
tax liability as well as assessing temporary déferes resulting from different treatment of itemistix and book accounting purposes. These
differences result in deferred tax assets andliigsi which are recorded on the balance sheets@lassets and liabilities are analyzed regt
and management assesses the likelihood that détesressets will be recovered from future taxaideme. A valuation allowance is
established to the extent that management belibeg¢secovery is not likely. Reserves are alsotistzed for potential and ongoing audits of
federal and state tax issues. We routinely motiterpotential impact of such situations and beligne it is properly reserved. Valuations
related to amounts owed and tax rates could bedtegdy changes to tax codes, changes in statiziomates, our future taxable income levels
and the results of tax audits.
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Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

See Item 8, “Note 1 — Nature of Business and Sicait Accounting Policies” of the Notes to Consatetl Financial Statements for
information regarding recently adopted accountiiagdards or accounting standards to be adoptéubifuture.

ITEM 7A.  QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are subject to the risk inherent in the cycliture of commodity chemical prices. However, wendt currently purchase forward
contracts or otherwise engage in hedging activitigls respect to the purchase of commodity cheraidAe attempt to pass changes in mat
prices on to our customers, however, there aresaorances that we will be able to pass on theasesein the future.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of HawKims,;

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of Hawkins, Inc. and subsidiaries (thagzmy) as of April 1, 2012 and
April 3, 2011, and the related consolidated statemef income, shareholdemsquity and comprehensive income (loss), and casvsffor eacl
of the years in the three-year period ended AprAL2. In connection with our audits of the finahstatements, we have also audited the
financial statement schedule listed in the Indeltegth 15, as of and for the years ended April 1,Z2®pril 3, 2011 and March 28, 2010. We
also have audited the Company'’s internal contrek dwnancial reporting as of April 1, 2012, basedoniteria established imternal Control —
Integrated Frameworissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidriee Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s
management is responsible for these consolidatesdial statements and financial statement schefitulenaintaining effective internal cont
over financial reporting, and for its assessmerhefeffectiveness of internal control over finaheceporting, included in the accompanying
Management’s Report on Internal Control Over FirariReporting. Our responsibility is to expressogimion on these consolidated financial
statements and financial statement schedule angiaion on the Company'’s internal control over finl reporting based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamiqUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdintiecial statements are free of material
misstatement and whether effective internal corgvelr financial reporting was maintained in all erél respects. Our audits of the
consolidated financial statements includes exargimm a test basis, evidence supporting the ameaunatslisclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principlesarsg significant estimates made by managementeaaidating the overall financial
statement presentation. Our audit of internal @dmtver financial reporting includes obtaining ardarstanding of internal control over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a neteeakness exists, and testing and evaluatieglésign and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. Qdit also includes performing such other procedaewe considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audits proviceaaonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablezassuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttegenerally accepted accounting princip
A company’s internal control over financial repogiincludes those policies and procedures thgté€ftain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseofompany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@awih generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®itbmpany are being made only in accordance withoaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabburance regarding prevention or timely deteafainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lrareterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or d¢t@isstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdénaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policiepraicedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaeeferred to above present fairly, in all matenéspects, the financial position of
Hawkins, Inc. and subsidiaries as of April 1, 20Agril 3, 2011 and March 28, 2010, and the resofittheir operations and their cash flows for
each of the years in the three-year period ended A2012, in conformity with U.S. generally agted accounting principles. Also, in our
opinion, such financial statement schedule, whesicered in relation to the basic consolidatedrfoia statements taken as a whole, presents
fairly, in all material respects, the informaticet $orth therein as of April 1, 2012, April 3, 204hd March 28, 2010 and for each of the yea
the three-year period ended April 1, 2012. Furtleemin our opinion, Hawkins, Inc. maintained, Ihraaterial respects, effective internal
control over financial reporting as of April 1, Z)lbased on criteria establishedniternal Control — Integrated Framewoitsued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tread®ommission.

/s/ KPMG LLP
Minneapolis, Minnesota
June 1, 2012
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HAWKINS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share data)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalel
Investments availak-for-sale
Trade receivable— less allowance for doubtful accoun
$460 for 2012 and $406 for 20
Inventories
Income taxes receivab
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Total current asse

PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT
Land
Buildings and improvemen
Machinery and equipme!
Transportation equipme
Office furniture and equipment including computestems

Less accumulated depreciation and amortizz
Net property, plant, and equipme
OTHER ASSETS
Goodwill
Intangible asset— less accumulated amortizatic
$1,790 for 2012 and $1,165 for 20
Long-term investment
Other
Total other asse!
Total asset

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS ' EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payabl— trade

Dividends payabli

Accrued payroll and employee bene

Deferred income taxe

Container deposil

Other accrual

Total current liabilities

OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES

Total liabilities
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
SHAREHOLDERY EQUITY:

Common stock; authorized: 30,000,000 shares of5$§8a0 value; 10,430,874 and 10,307,177 sh

issued and outstanding for 2012 and 2011, respdyg
Additional paic-in capital
Retained earning
Accumulated other comprehensive |

Total shareholde’ equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated financissents.
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April 1, 2012

$ 28,56¢
12,21(

38,06¢
27,63¢
2,44,
1,93(
110,85¢

7,931
55,06¢
39,43:
14,84:
10,02%

127,29¢
54,03¢
73,26¢

6,49¢

8,18¢
5,13¢

141
19,96

$ 204,08:

$ 18,62!
3,331
8,481
3,17(¢

987
1,691

522
45,16¢
111,03¢
(123)
156,60’

$ 204,08:

April 3, 2011

$ 18,94(
15,28¢

35,73
29,21
2,197
2,87
104,24¢

4,36:
47,10:
35,74(
14,03¢
11,72¢

112,97
50,57¢
62,39t

6,231

8,811
3,17¢

14%
18,36:

$ 185,00!

$ 23,35(
3,00t
7,76(
2,61¢

97¢
1,66¢
39,47
1,21¢
7,87¢
48,56:

51F
41,06(
95,01
(148)
136,44:

$ 185,00
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HAWKINS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(In thousands, except share and per-share data)

Sales
Cost of sale:

Gross profi

Selling, general and administrative exper
Operating incomi

Investment incom

Income from continuing operations before incomes&
Provision for income taxe

Income from continuing operatiol
Income from discontinued operations, net of

Net income

Weighted average number of shares outstar-basic
Weighted average number of shares outstar-diluted
Basic earnings per she

Earnings per share from continuing operati
Earnings per share from discontinued operat

Basic earnings per she
Diluted earnings per sha

Earnings per share from continuing operati
Earnings per share from discontinued operat

Diluted earnings per sha
Cash dividends declared per common sl

See accompanying notes to consolidated financistents.

Fiscal Year Ended

April 1, 2012
$ 343,83
(277,96
65,86¢
(30,759
35,10¢
14t
35,25¢
(13,626
21,62¢
1,057
$ 22,68¢
10,339,39
10,408,57
$ 2.0¢
0.1C
$ 2.1¢
$ 2.0¢
0.1C
$ 2.1¢
$ 0.64

April 3, 2011
$ 297,64:
(235,739
61,90
(29,940
31,96:
33¢
32,29¢
(11,98)
20,31«
$ 20,31«
10,260,13
10,352,63
$ 1.9¢
$ 1.9¢
$ 1.9¢
$ 1.9¢
$ 0.7¢

March 28, 201(
$ 257,09¢
(192,65
64,44t

(25,609
38,84(
28¢

39,12¢
(15,38%)
23,73¢

10¢

$ 23,84
10,250,97
10,282,99

$ 2.32
0.01

$ 2.3¢

$ 2.31
0.01

$ 2.32
$ 0.6¢
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HAWKINS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

(In thousands, except share data)

BALANCE — March 29, 200¢

Cash dividend
Stock compensation exper
Vesting of restricted stoc
Comprehensive incom:
Unrealized gain on availal-for-sale
investments, net of te

Unrealized loss on pc-retirement plan liability

net of tax
Net income

Comprehensive incorn

BALANCE — March 28, 201(

Cash dividend
Stock compensation exper
Tax benefit on sha-based compensation pla
Vesting of restricted stoc
Shares surrendered for payroll ta:
Comprehensive incom

Unrealized loss on availal-for-sale

investments, net of te

Unrealized loss on pc-retirement plan liability

net of tax
Net income

Comprehensive incorr

BALANCE — April 3, 2011

Cash dividend
Stock compensation exper
Tax benefit on sha-based compensation pla
Vesting of restricted stoc
Shares surrendered for payroll ta:
Stock Options Exercise
ESPP Shares Issu
Comprehensive incom
Unrealized loss on availal-for-sale
investments, net of te
Unrealized gain on post-retirement plan
liability, net of tax
Net income

Comprehensive incorr

BALANCE — April 1, 2012

See accompanying notes to consolidated financisstents.

Common Stock

Accumulated
Additional Other

Comprehensive

Total
Shareholders’

Paid-in Retained

Shares Amount Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Equity
10,246,45 $ 512z $38,36¢ ¢ 64,86( $ (10) $ 1083,73(
(6,786 (6,786
65¢ 65¢
7,00(C 1 — 1
66 66
19 19
23,84, 23,84,
23,89¢
10,253,45 $ 51& $39,027 $ 81,92 $ 37 $ 121,49¢
(7,222 (7,222
1,952 1,952
281 281
58,65: 3 ©)] —
(4,939 (1) (197) (19¢)
(63) (63)
(119) (119)
20,31« 20,31«
20,13:
10,307,147 $ 515  $41,06( $ 9501 $ (145) $ 136,44:
(6,65¢) (6,65¢)
1,35( 1,35(
69¢ 69¢
18,66 1 (1) —
(3,980) — (150) (150)
85,33: 5 1,461 1,46¢
23,68: 1 751 752
4 (4)
26 26
22,68t 22,68t
22,70
10,430,87. $ 52z $45,16¢ $111,03¢ $ (123 $ 156,60°
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HAWKINS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income
Reconciliation to cash flow:
Depreciation and amortizatic
Deferred income taxe
Stock compensation exper
Loss from property dispose

Changes in operating accounts (using) providing,cast of effects ¢

acquisition:
Trade receivable
Inventories
Accounts payabl
Accrued liabilities
Income taxe:
Other

Net cash provided by operating activit

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to property, plant, and equipm
Purchases of investmer
Sale and maturities of investme
Proceeds from property dispos
Acquisition of Vertex

Net cash used in investing activiti

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash dividends pai
New Shares Issue
Stock Options Exercise
Excess tax benefit from sh-based compensatic
Shares surrendured for payroll ta:
Net cash used in financing activiti
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT¢-
Beginning of perioc

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT¢-
End of perioc

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATIC-
Cash paid during the year for income ta

Noncash investing activiti-
Acquisition purchase price in accounts pay:
Capital expenditures in accounts paye

See accompanying notes to consolidated financisstents.
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Fiscal Year Ended

April 1, 2012

$ 22,68t

8,45¢
3,08:
1,35(

2

(2,40)
1,31¢
(1,846)
342

(251)

947
33,68:

(20,05
(14,16%)
15,27(
25E
(1,709
(20,406)

(6,417)
752
1,46¢
69¢
(150)

(3,650)
9,62¢

18,94(
328,561
$ 10,78¢

$ —
$ 27¢

April 3, 2011

$ 20,31«

7,14¢

(600)
1,95:
127

(5,929)
(3,14))
5,35¢

15€
2,52¢
61¢
28,53

(12,427
(14,210)
30,54t

142

(25,500)
(21,447)

(7,009)

281
(19¢)

(6,927)
16¢€

18,77:
$ 18,94(
$ 9,771

1,70¢
1,45(

&

March 28, 201(
$ 23,841

6,292
7,152
65¢
12

4,05(
514
(462)
(322)
(2,40¢)

ge,sg)
(10,769)

29,53¢
$ 18,77:
$ 10,65¢

$ —
$ 1,11¢
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HAWKINS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 — Nature of Business and Significant Accouimgy Policies

Nature of Business —We have two reportable segments: Industrial andeWeteatment. The Industrial Group operates ounsivifl
segment and specializes in providing industriahaicals, products and services to the agricultunergy, electronics, food, chemical
processing, pulp and paper, pharmaceutical, med®ate and plating industries. The group also rfestures and sells certain food-grade
products, including our patented Cheese Phos ligh@sphate, lactates and other blended producesWiter Treatment Group operates our
Water Treatment segment and specializes in prayidiemicals, equipment and solutions for potablekyanunicipal and industrial
wastewater, industrial process water and non-raaleswimming pool water. The group has the resesiand flexibility to treat systems
ranging in size from a small single well to a mattillion gallon-per-day facility.

Fiscal Year —Our fiscal year is a 52/53-week year ending onSheday closest to March 31. Our fiscal year endipgl 1, 2012
(“fiscal 2012") is a 52-week year. The fiscal yeaded April 3, 2011 (“fiscal 2011") was a 53-wedaay, and the fiscal year ended March 28,
2010 (“fiscal 2010") was a 52-week year. The fisgzdr ending on March 31, 2013 (“fiscal 2013") vki# a 52-week year. Beginning in fiscal
2012, we changed our quarterly interim reporting tt8-week convention.

Principles of Consolidation —The consolidated financial statements include tw®ants of Hawkins, Inc. and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries. All intercompany transactions andants have been eliminated.

Estimates — The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith U.S. generally accepted accounting priresp(*GAAP™)
requires management to make estimates and assasihiat affect the reported amounts of assetsiabitities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the finanstialements and the reported amounts of revenukesxgenses during the reported period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition -We recognize revenue when there is evidence thatitbtomer has agreed to purchase the produgiritteeand
terms of the sale are fixed, the product has skippel title passes to our customer, performancetasred, and collection of the receivabl
reasonably assured.

Shipping and Handling —All shipping and handling amounts billed to custosn@re included in revenues. Costs incurred relaidde
shipping and handling of products are includedast ©f sales.

Fair Value Measurements —The Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB3ued an accounting standard codified in ASC 820
“Fair Value Measurements and Disclosurthdt provides a single definition for fair valustablishes a framework for measuring fair value
expands disclosures about fair value measureméntier this standard, fair value is defined as thiepice, or the amount that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfertdliliain an orderly transaction between markettipgzants as of the measurement date. This
standard also establishes a hierarchy for inpugd ilsmeasuring fair value that maximizes the dsgbeervable inputs and minimizes the use
of unobservable inputs by requiring that the mdasteovable inputs be used when available. Observalegs are inputs market participants
would use in valuing the asset or liability deveddghased on market data obtained from sourceseéndept of us. Unobservable inputs are
inputs that reflect our assumptions about the faatwarket participants would use in valuing theeaiss liability developed based upon the best
information available in the circumstances.

The financial assets and liabilities that are rexsoeed and reported at fair value for each repppariod include marketable securities.
Other than the application of purchase accounting gesult of the Vertex acquisition, there werdaiovalue measurements with respect to
nonfinancial assets or liabilities that are
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HAWKINS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

recognized or disclosed at fair value in our coidstéd financial statements on a recurring badiseguent to the effective date of this
standard.

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value éaesified using the following hierarchy, which iaded upon the transparency of inputs to
the valuation as of the measurement date:

Level 1: Valuation is based on observable inputs such aseedumarket prices (unadjusted) for identical assetiabilities in active
markets.

Level 2: Valuation is based on inputs such as quoted maries for similar assets or liabilities in activerkets or other inputs
that are observable for the asset or liabilityhesitdirectly or indirectly, for substantially thellfterm of the financial instrument.

Level 3: Valuation is based upon other unobservable inghatisare significant to the fair value measurement.

In making fair value measurements, observable maidta must be used when available. When inputs tesmeasure fair value fall
within different levels of the hierarchy, the lewethin which the fair value measurement is categgat is based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement.

Cash Equivalents —Cash equivalents include all liquid debt instrunsgprimarily cash funds, money market accountscantificates o
deposit) purchased with an original maturity oelnmonths or less. The balances maintained atdiganstitutions may, at times, exceed
federally insured limits.

Investments —Available-for-sale securities consist of certifieabf deposit and are valued at current markeeyakth the resulting
unrealized gains and losses excluded from eargindseported, net of tax, as a separate compofshaoeholders’ equity until realized. Any
impairment loss to reduce an investment’s carrgimgunt to its fair market value is recognized icoime when a decline in the fair market
value of an individual security below its cost arrying value is determined to be other than temgor

Trade Receivables and Concentrations of Credit RiskFinancial instruments, which potentially subjectas concentration of credit
risk, principally consist of trade receivables. ¥é&H our principal products to a large number aftomers in many different industries. There
are no concentrations of business transacted watrtecular customer or sales from a particulaviseror geographic area that would
significantly impact us in the near term. To redacedit risk, we routinely assess the financiamsgth of our customers. We record an
allowance for doubtful accounts to reduce our redgles to an amount we estimate is collectible foamcustomers. Estimates used in
determining the allowance for doubtful accountskased on historical collection experience, curterids, aging of accounts receivable and
periodic evaluations of our customers’ financiahdibion. We invest our excess cash balances astimeertificates of deposit and a money
market account at two separate financial instingiohere the cash balances may exceed federaligeishéimits. The institutions are two of the
largest commercial banking institutions in the doyiand both have maintained a AA credit rating.

Inventories —Inventories, consisting primarily of finished gopdse primarily valued at the lower of cost or restlizable value, with
cost being determined using the last-in, first{@uUtFO”") method. Vertex’s inventory cost, which negsents approximately 10% of the total
FIFO inventory balance at April 1, 2012, is detered using the first-in, first-out (“FIFO”) method.
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HAWKINS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Property, Plant and Equipment —Property is stated at cost and depreciated or &adrover the lives of the assets, using straiigiat-|
method. Estimated lives are: 10 to 40 years foldings and improvements; 3 to 20 years for mackiaed equipment; 3 to 10 years for
transportation equipment; and 3 to 10 years faceffurniture and equipment including computer sys.

Significant improvements that add to productiveazaly or extend the lives of properties are cajzital. Costs for repairs and
maintenance are charged to expense as incurrech Whperty is retired or otherwise disposed of,dbst and related accumulated
depreciation or amortization are removed from ttepants and any related gains or losses are intlud@come.

We review the recoverability of long-lived assetde held and used, such as property, plant arigregat, when events or changes in
circumstances occur that indicate the carryingevalithe asset or asset group may not be recoegiginth as prolonged industry downturn or
significant reductions in projected future castiwio The assessment of possible impairment is basedir ability to recover the carrying value
of the asset or asset group from the expecteddyirg-tax cash flows (undiscounted) of the relajgerations. If these cash flows are less than
the carrying value of such asset or asset groupmpairment loss would be measured by the amountainrying value exceeds the fair valur
the long-lived assets. The measurement of impairmeguires us to estimate future cash flows andahevalue of long-lived assets. No
material long-lived assets were determined to hained during fiscal 2012, 2011, or 2010.

Goodwill and Identifiable Intangible Assets -Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of aeduiusinesses over the fair value of
identifiable tangible net assets and identifiabtamgible assets purchased. Goodwill is testedast lannually for impairment, and is tested for
impairment more frequently if events or changesiioumstances indicate that the asset might beineghalhe impairment test is performed
using a two-step process. In the first step, tirevidue of the reporting unit is compared with ttarying amount of the reporting unit,
including goodwill. If the estimated fair valueléss than the carrying amount of the reporting, @mitindication that goodwill impairment
exists and a second step must be completed in trditermine the amount of the goodwill impairméany, which should be recorded. In
the second step, an impairment loss would be rezedffior any excess of the carrying amount of gporting unit's goodwill over the implied
fair value of that goodwill. The implied fair valwé goodwill is determined by allocating the faalue of the reporting unit in a manner similar
to a purchase price allocation. The fair valuehefteporting unit is determined using a discougesh flow analysis. Projecting discounted
future cash flows requires us to make significatingates regarding future revenues and expensgecped capital expenditures, changes in
working capital and the appropriate discount ratee projections also take into account severabfadhcluding current and estimated
economic trends and outlook, costs of raw materialssideration of our market capitalization in garison to the estimated fair values of our
reporting units determined using discounted cash finalyses and other factors which are beyondautrol.

Our primary identifiable intangible assets includstomer lists, trade secrets, non-compete agraspieademarks, and trade names
acquired in previous business acquisitions. Idiaiié intangibles with finite lives are amortizetdahose identifiable intangibles with
indefinite lives are not amortized. The values@ssil to the intangible assets with finite liveslaegng amortized on average over
approximately 14 years. ldentifiable intangibleedsghat are subject to amortization are evalufatemnpairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amongy not be recoverable. Identifiable intangiblests ot subject to amortization are teste:
impairment annually or more frequently if eventsraat. The impairment test consists of a comparifahe fair value of the intangible asset
with its carrying amount.

We completed step one of our annual goodwill impaint evaluation during the fourth quarter of fis2@l2 and determined that our
reporting units’ fair value substantially exceedleelir carrying value. Accordingly,
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step two of the impairment analysis was not reguivge also completed an impairment test of infitifieeintangible assets during the fourth
guarter, in which the fair value exceeded the ¢aggamount. Additionally, no impairment charges &vezquired for fiscal 2011 or 2010.

Income Taxes —in the preparation of our consolidated financiatestents, management calculates income taxes bpeadhe
estimated effective rate applicable to operatirsyits for the full fiscal year. This includes estiting the current tax liability as well as
assessing differences resulting from differentttreant of items for tax and book accounting purpo$eese differences result in deferred tax
assets and liabilities, which are recorded on #iarte sheet. These assets and liabilities argzmtategularly and management assesses the
likelihood that deferred tax assets will be recedeirom future taxable income. We record any irgeamd penalties related to income taxes as
income tax expense in the statements of income.

The effect of income tax positions are recognizelg d those positions are more likely than notbeing sustained. Changes in
recognition or measurement are made as facts atuhtstances change.

Stock-Based Compensation e account for stock-based compensation on a &irevbasis. The estimated grant date fair valiesoh
stock-based award is recognized in expense oveethasite service period (generally the vestinggeh. The estimated fair value of each
option is calculated using the Black-Scholes opticning model. Non-vested share awards are recoadecompensation expense over the
requisite service periods based on the market \@iube date of grant.

Earnings Per Share —Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) are computed Wigidg net income by the weighted-average number of
common shares outstanding. Diluted EPS are comiytelividing net income by the weighted-average benof common shares outstanding
including the incremental shares assumed to bedsspon the exercise of stock options and the imergal shares assumed to be issued as
performance units and restricted stock. Basic dluted EPS were calculated using the following:

April 1, 2012 April 3, 2011 March 28, 201(
Weighted average common shares outstan— basic 10,339,39 10,260,13 10,250,97
Dilutive impact of stock options, performance unéad restricted stoc 69,18: 92,49¢ 32,01¢
Weighted average common shares outstar— diluted 10,408,57 10,352,63 10,282,99

There were no shares or stock options excluded fhencalculation of weighted average common sharediluted EPS for fiscal 2012
fiscal 2011. Stock options totaling 70,665 in fis2@10 have been excluded from the calculationiloted EPS because the effect of including
the shares would be anti-dilutive.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities “‘We do not have any freestanding or embedded desbsaand it is our policy to not
enter into contracts that contain them.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements —

Intangibles — Goodwill and Other— In September 2011, the FASB issued Accountingdieds Update (“ASU”) No. 2011-08, “Testing
Goodwill for Impairment” which amended the guidameegoodwill impairment testing to allow companiedirst assess qualitative factors to
determine whether it is necessary to perform treedtep quantitative goodwill impairment test. §,aresult of the qualitative assessment, an
entity determines that it is more-likely-than-nioat the fair value of a reporting unit is less tltarcarrying amount,
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the quantitative impairment test is required. Othee, no further testing is required. The amendneeaffective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2011, which is our fiscal year 2018 garly adoption is permitted. We intend to adbptamendment in fiscal 2013 and do not
expect it to materially affect our financial positior results of operations.

Multiemployer Pension Plans 4/ September 2011, FASB issued ASU No. 2011-Mistlosures about an Employer’s Participation in
a Multiemployer Plan”, to require expanded disclosures for entitiesigipdting in multiemployer plans. The expanded ldisares are
designed to assist financial statement users #sasyy the potential impact of an entity’s partitipn in multiemployer plans on future cash
flow. This guidance is effective for annual repogtiperiods ending after December 15, 2011. We adais ASU during fiscal 2012. This
ASU does not change the accounting for an emplsystticipation in a multiemployer plan. See Note-8rofit Sharing, Employee Stock
Ownership and Employee Stock Purchase Plans fologisres related to this ASU.

Note 2 — Business Combinations

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2011, we completieel acquisition of the assets of Vertex ChemicapOmtion, Novel Wash Co. Inc. and
R.H.A. Corporation, (collectively, “Vertex”), purant to an Asset Purchase Agreement dated as cddah, 2011 (the “Asset Purchase
Agreement”). As provided in the Asset Purchase Agrent, we acquired substantially all of the asss¢sl in Vertex’s business, which is
primarily the manufacture and distribution of sadibypochlorite and the distribution of caustic sddadrochloric acid and related products.
We paid cash of $25.5 million at closing and asslioeztain liabilities of Vertex. The purchase pneas revised to $27.2 million as provided
in the Asset Purchase Agreement to reflect a firaking capital adjustment of $1.7 million, whiclas/paid in early fiscal 2012. In connection
with the acquisition we incurred acquisition retht®sts during fiscal 2011 of $0.7 million, whiclere recorded as selling, general and
administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statesved Income.

The acquisition has been accounted for under theisiton method of accounting in accordance witBCATopic 805Business
Combinations Under the acquisition method of accounting, tieltestimated purchase price is allocated to gt¢amgible and intangible
assets of Vertex acquired in connection with theugsition, based on their estimated fair values.

The allocation of the purchase price to assetsiestjand liabilities assumed follows:

(In thousands) Amount

Accounts receivable $ 4,97¢
Inventories 4,48¢
Other current asse 19¢
Property, plant and equipme 8,991
Goodwill 5,291
Intangibles 5,49(
Accounts payabl (2,012)
Accrued employee benefi (210
Total purchase pric $27,20¢
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The allocation of the purchase price to the assmisired and liabilities assumed resulted in tlwegaition of the following intangible
assets:

Weighted
(In thousands) Amount Average Life
Customer relationshiy $3,45( 20 year
Trademark 1,24(C 10 year
Carrier relationship 80C 10 year

Intangible assets acquir $5,49(

The fair value of the identified intangible assets estimated using an income approach. Undentioerie approach an intangible asset’s
fair value is equal to the present value of fuzenomic benefits to be derived from ownershiproésset. Indications of value are developed

by discounting future net cash flows to their presalue at market-based rates of return.

The goodwill recognized as a result of the Verteguasition is primarily attributable to expectedeygies, as well as Vertex's assembled
work force.

Vertex operating results are included in our Cadstéd Statements of Income in our Industrial segrfrem the date of acquisition.

The following unaudited pro forma condensed cousdéid financial results of operations for the yavadted April 3, 2011 is presented as
if the Vertex acquisition had been completed atitbginning of the period. The amounts shown foryibar ended April 1, 2012 are based on
actual results for the period:

Years Ended

April 1, April 3,

(In thousands, except share and p-share data) 2012 2011
Pro forma net sale $ 343,83 $ 329,65:
Pro forma net earning 22,68¢ 21,88¢
Pro forma earnings per sha

Basic $ 2.1¢ $ 2.1

Diluted 2.1¢ 2.11
Weighted average common shares outstans

Basic 10,339,39 10,260,13

Diluted 10,408,57 10,352,63

These unaudited pro forma condensed consolidataddial results have been prepared for illustrgtiwgoses only and do not purpor
be indicative of the results of operations thatiaty would have resulted had the acquisition oemlion the first day of each fiscal period
presented, or of future results of the consolidatstities. The unaudited pro forma condensed cateted financial information does not refl
any operating efficiencies and cost savings that haave been realized from the integration of theugsition.
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Note 3 — Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments

The following table presents information about fimancial assets and liabilities that are measatddir value on a recurring basis as of
April 1, 2012 and April 3, 2011, and indicates fhe value hierarchy of the valuation techniquaba#d to determine such fair value.

Description April 1,
(In thousands) 2012 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets:
Cash $28,00¢ $28,00¢ $ — $—
Certificates of depos 17,34¢ — 17,34¢ —
Money market securitie 56C 56C — —
Description April 3,
(In thousands) 2011 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets:
Cash $18,48¢ $18,48¢ $ — $—
Certificates of depos 18,461 — 18,461 —
Money market securitie 45k 45k — —

Our financial assets that are measured at fairevatua recurring basis are certificates of detSiD’s”), with maturities ranging from
three months to two years which fall within valeatitechnique Level 2. The CD’s are classified &gss$tments in current assets and noncurrent
assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. AsrdflA2012, the CD’s in current assets have avalue of $12.2 million, and in noncurrent
assets, the CD’s have a fair value of $5.1 million.

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalentsuads approximates fair value, as maturities areetimonths or less. We did not have
any financial liability instruments subject to regag fair value measurements as of April 1, 2008 April 3, 2011.

The contractual maturities of available-for-salewsgies at April 1, 2012 are shown in the tabléohe

Amortized
Unrealized
(In thousands) Cost Fair Value Gain/(loss
Within one yeal $12,20¢ $12,21( $ 5
Between one and two ye: 5,14¢ 5,13¢ (O]
Total availabl-for-sale securitie $17,35( $17,34¢ $ (1)
The contractual maturities of available-for-salewsgies at April 3, 2011 are shown in the tabléole
Amortized
Unrealized
(In thousands) Cost Fair Value Gain/(loss
Within one yeal $15,27( $15,28¢ $ 16
Between one and two ye: 3,18¢ 3,17¢ (10
Total availabl-for-sale securitie $18,45¢ $18,46: $ 6

Realized gains and losses were not material foafi2012, fiscal 2011 and fiscal 2010.
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Note 4 — Inventories
Inventories at April 1, 2012 and April 3, 2011 cimtead of the following:

2012 2011
(In thousands)
Finished goods (FIFO basi $35,07: $35,07:
LIFO reserve (7,439 (5,859
Net inventory $27,63: $29,217

The FIFO value of inventories accounted for unterltiFO method were $30.6 million at April 1, 2042d $28.6 million at April 3,
2011. The remainder of the inventory was valuedawbunted for under the FIFO method.

We increased the LIFO reserve by $1.6 million stél 2012 due primarily to the volume and mix afheoodity chemicals in inventory
the end of the year. In fiscal 2011 we increased kO reserve by $3.9 million due primarily toimg inventory costs, as well as higher
inventory volumes at the end of fiscal 2011.

Note 5 — Goodwill and Other Identifiable Intangible Assets
The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill waesdollows:

(In thousands) Amount
Balance as of March 28, 20 $1,20¢
Vertex acquisitior 5,027
Balance as of April 3, 201 6,231
Fiscal 2012 adjustme 264
Balance as of April 1, 201 $6,49¢

The increase in goodwill during fiscal 2012 relat@she finalization of the determination of thé fealue of inventory acquired as part of
the acquisition of Vertex.

A summary of our intangible assets as of April@12 and April 3, 2011 were as follows:

2012
Gross Carryin Accumulater
Amount Amortizatior Net
(In thousands)
Finite-life intangible asset:
Customer relationshif $  5,50¢ $ (706 $4,80:
Trademark 1,24(C (150 1,09(
Trade secret 862 (521 341
Carrier relationship 80C (96) 704
Other finite-life intangible asset 33¢ (317) 22
Total finite-life intangible asset 8,74¢ (2,790 6,95¢
Indefinite-life intangible asset 1,227 — 1,223
Total intangible assets, n $  9,97¢ $ (1,79C $8,18¢

36



Table of Contents

HAWKINS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
2011
Gross Carryin Accumulater
Amount Amortizatior Net

(In thousands)
Finite-life intangible asset:

Customer relationshif $  5,50¢ $ (429 $5,08¢

Trademark 1,24( (26) 1,214

Trade secret 862 (413) 44¢

Carrier relationship 80C (18) 782

Other finite-life intangible asset 33¢ (285) 54
Total finite-life intangible asset 8,74¢ (1,165 7,58¢
Indefinite-life intangible asset 1,227 — 1,223
Total intangible assets, n $  9,97¢ $ (1,16%) $8,811

Intangible asset amortization expense was $0.6omitluring fiscal 2012, $0.3 million during fisc2D11, and $0.2 million during fiscal
2010.

The estimated future amortization expense for iflehte intangible assets during the next five geiaras follows:

(In thousands) 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Estimated amortization expen $59€ $59z $59z $50z $47¢

Note 6 — Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Ls3)
Components of accumulated other comprehensive iadtoas), net of tax, were as follows:

(In thousands) 201z 2011 2010
Unrealized gain (loss) ol
Available-for-sale investment $(4) $ 3 $ 66
Pos-retirement plan liability adjustmen 26 (148 (29
Accumulated other comprehensive income (It $22 $(145) $ 37

Note 7 — Share-Based Compensation

Stock Option AwardsOur Board of Directors has approved a long-terceintive equity compensation arrangement for oucbiee
officers. This long-term incentive arrangement jies for the grant of nonqualified stock optionatthest at the end of a three-year period and
expire no later than 10 years after the grant d&feeused the Black-Scholes valuation model to edérthe fair value of the options at grant
date based on the following assumptions:

Fiscal 2010 grau Fiscal 2009 grai
Dividend yield 2.5% 3.2%
Volatility 31.4% 28.(%
Risk-free interest rat 2.1% 3.0%
Expected life in year 4 4

37



Table of Contents

HAWKINS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Volatility was calculated using the past four yeairfistorical stock prices of our common stocke®xpected life is estimated based on
expected future trends and the terms and vestirigdseof the options granted. The risk-free interate is an interpolation of the relevant
U.S. Treasury Bond Rate as of the grant date.

The following table represents the stock optionvégtfor fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2011:

2012
Total Outstanding Exercisable
Weighted- Weighted-
Aggregate Aggregate
Average Average
Exercise Intrinsic Exercise Intrinsic
(In thousand, except share data) Shares Price Value Shares Price Value
Outstanding at beginning of year 131,99 $ 17.8- $ 4,90¢ 66,66¢ $ 17.67 $ 2,48
Granted — — — —
Vested — — 27,99¢ 15.4:
Exercisec (85,337) 17.1¢ (85,337) 17.1¢
Forfeited or expires — —
Outstanding at end of ye 46,66 $ 19.0] $ 1,54i 9,33 $ 15.4: $ 32C
2011
Total Outstanding Exercisable
Weighted- Weighted-
Aggregate Aggregate
Average Average
Exercise Intrinsic Exercise Intrinsic
(In thousand, except share data Shares Price Value Shares Price Value
Outstanding at beginning of ye 131,99° $ 17.82 $ 2,60 — $ — $ —
Granted — — — —
Vested — — 66,66¢ 17.61%
Exercisec — — — —
Forfeited or expires — — — —
Outstanding at end of ye 131,99° $ 17.82 $ 4,90¢ 66,66¢ $ 17.67 $ 2,48

The weighted average grant date fair value of ogtiwas estimated to be $4.33 and $2.95 for optcensted in fiscal 2010 and fiscal
2009, respectively. The weighted average remailifie@f all outstanding and exercisable option§.ik years.

Annual expense related to the value of stock optisas $0.1 million for fiscal 2012, $0.2 millionrfiscal 2011 and $0.1 million for
fiscal 2010, substantially all of which was recatde SG&A expense in the Consolidated Statementsafme. Options awarded to John
Hawkins, former Chief Executive Officer, becamdyfilested and exercisable upon his death in Maédi 2resulting in the acceleration of
expense of $0.1 million. The total fair value otiops vested during fiscal 2012 was $0.1 milliomgared to $0.2 million during fiscal 2011.
Unrecognized compensation expense related to adistastock options as of April 1, 2012 was noteniat and is expected to be recognized
over a weighted average period of 0.2 years.

Performance-Based Restricted Stock Uniisr Board of Directors has approved a performdrased equity compensation arrangement
for our executive officers. This performance-baggdngement provides for the grant of performaraset restricted stock units that represent
a possible future issuance of restricted shares
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of our common stock based on our pre-tax incongetdor the applicable fiscal year. The actual nendf restricted shares to be issued to
each executive officer will be determined when final financial information becomes available aftiee applicable fiscal year and will be
between zero shares and 43,022 shares in the aggffeg fiscal 2012. The restricted shares issu#dully vest two years after the last day of
the fiscal year on which the performance is ba¥éel are recording the compensation expense forutstamding performance share units and
then-converted restricted stock over the life ef éhwards.

Performance-based restricted stock units were adaour executive officers on June 8, 2011, yr&®10 and June 10, 2009 under
this arrangement. The following table represergsréstricted stock activity for fiscal 2012 andc&k2011:

2012 2011
Weighted- Weighted-

Average Grant Average Grant
Shares Date Fair Value Shares Date Fair Value
Outstanding at beginning of year 11,66 $ 25.81 23,00( $ 19.9(
Granted 33,321 35.3¢ 41,32( 30.02
Vested (11,667 25.81 (52,659 26.5¢

Forfeited or expires — — — —
Outstanding at end of ye 33,32! $ 35.3¢ 11,667 $ 25.81

We recorded compensation expense related to thessisgued for fiscal 2010 and fiscal 2011 andothtential issuance of shares for
fiscal 2012 of approximately $0.8 million for fidc2012, $1.6 million for fiscal 2011 and $0.4 nolti for fiscal 2010, substantially all of which
was recorded in SG&A expense in the Consolidatate8tents of Income. The performance-based restrttek units previously awarded to
John Hawkins, totaling 39,820 shares, became fidted and payable upon his death in March 20%1jtheg in the acceleration of
compensation expense of $0.4 million. The totalfalue of performance-based restricted stock weitsed in fiscal 2012 was $0.3 million
compared to $1.4 million in fiscal 2011.

Until the performance-based restricted stock ueissilt in the issuance of restricted stock, thewamof expense recorded each period is
dependent upon our estimate of the number of stiaaesvill ultimately be issued and our then cutemmmon stock price. Upon issuance of
restricted stock, we record compensation expensetbe remaining vesting period using the aware dhising price, which was $25.81 per
share on June 2, 2010 and $35.39 per share or8J204 1. Unrecognized compensation expense refateon-vested restricted share units as
of April 1, 2012 was $1.1 million and is expected recognized over a weighted average perioddojdars.

In conjunction with the vesting of restricted stdeNd by certain of our executive officers, 3,98@res were forfeited during fiscal 2012
to cover the executive officers statutory minimuradme tax withholding.

The benefits of tax deductions in excess of reamghtompensation costs (excess tax benefits) eveded as a change in additional paid
in capital rather than a deduction of taxes palte @amount of excess tax benefit recognized anddaeddn additional paid in capital resulting
from share-based compensation cost was $0.7 mitlidiscal 2012 and $0.3 million during fiscal 2011

Restricted Stock Award#\s part of their retainer, the Board of Directozseives restricted stock for their Board servidée restricted
stock awards are expensed over the requisite gegériod, which begins on the
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date of issuance and ends on the date of the mextigh Meeting of Shareholders, based on the magtae on the date of grant. The following
table represents the Board’s restricted stock iagfior fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2011:

2012 2011
Weighted- Weighted-

Average Grant Average Grant
Shares Date Fair Value Shares Date Fair Value
Outstanding at beginning of peri 6,99¢ $ 30.0( 6,00( $ 18.6¢
Granted 6,12( 34.31 6,96¢ 30.0C
Vested (6,996) 30.0C (6,000) 18.6¢

Forfeited or expires — — — —
Outstanding at end of peri 6,12( $ 34.31 6,96¢ $ 30.0¢

Annual expense related to the value of restricteckswas $0.2 million for fiscal 2012 and $0.2 moitl for fiscal 2011 and $0.1 million
for fiscal 2010, all of which was recorded in SG&#&pense in the Consolidated Statements of Incomeeddgnized compensation expense
related to non-vested restricted stock awards dgpof 1, 2012 was $0.1 million and is expectedtorecognized over a weighted average
period of 0.3 years.

Note 8 — Profit Sharing, Employee Stock OwnershipEmployee Stock Purchase and Pension Plans

Effective April 1, 2009, we converted our definezhtribution pension plan covering substantiallyadlbur non-bargaining unit
employees to a profit sharing plan. It is our pplic fund all costs accrued. Contributions are metdsur discretion subject to a maximum
amount allowed under the Internal Revenue Code cOsirfor the profit sharing and pension plan wa bf each employee’s eligible
compensation in each of the fiscal years 2012, 20i12010. Beginning in fiscal 2013, profit sharpign contributions are variable and
aligned with company performance with a targeteatrdoution of between 2.5% and 5% of an employedigible compensation, depending
upon date of hire. In addition to the changes étofit sharing plan for fiscal 2013, we introdd@401(k) plan that will allow employees to
contribute pre-tax earnings up to the maximum arhallowed under the Internal Revenue Code, witkermployer match of up to 5% of the
employee’s eligible compensation.

We have an employee stock ownership plan (“ESO8VEKng substantially all of our non-bargainingtugrnployees. Contributions are
made at our discretion subject to a maximum amallatved under the Internal Revenue Code. Our aoyghe ESOP was 5% of each
employee’s eligible compensation in each of thedliyears 2012, 2011 and 2010. Beginning in fig26dl3, ESOP contributions are variable
and aligned with company performance with a tajetantribution of between 2.5% and 5% of an emp&yeligible compensation,
depending upon date of hire.

We have an employee stock purchase plan (“ESPR8riow substantially all of our employees. The ESR&ws employees to purchase
newly-issued shares of the Company’s common stbakdéscount from market, with no employee conttidou match from the Company. Prior
to fiscal 2012, this plan had a monthly employetahaf 75% of each employee’s contribution, up taaimum of $375 per month, with the
ESPP shares of the Company purchased on the op&rtma

In fiscal 2012, Vertex employees participated #04 (k) plan that included an employer match ofaif% of the employee’s eligible
compensation and a discretionary Company contohuffhe total company contribution to this plan 8s2 million. Beginning in fiscal 201
Vertex employees are included within the Companmgtsement plans outlined above.
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The following represents the contribution experwelie profit sharing, ESOP, ESPP and 401(k) plans:

Benefit Plar 2012 2011 2010

(In thousands)

Profit sharing $2,61¢ $2,67¢ $2,84¢

ESOP 80z 81t 89¢

ESPP 262 64¢& 65C

Vertex plan 17¢ — —
Total contribution expens $3,85¢ $4,13¢ $4,39:

Multiemployer pension planWe participate in a union sponsored, collectividygained multiemployer pension plan (“Union Pan”
Contributions are determined in accordance withptfowisions of negotiated labor contracts and gaheare based on the number of hours
worked. The risks of participating in multiemploymnsion plans are different from single-employlang in the following aspects: (i) Assets
contributed to a multiemployer plan by one emplayery be used to provide benefits to employeeshdrqrarticipating employers; (i) If a
participating employer stops contributing to thamlthe unfunded obligations of the plan may beédy the remaining participating
employers; and (iii) if we stop participating iretinultiemployer plan, we may be required to payptla® an amount based on the underfunded
status of the plan, referred to as a withdrawaiiliis.

The Company'’s participation in the Central StaBmytheast and Southwest Areas Pension Fund (“C&tates”) is outlined in the table
below. The Pension Protection Act (“PPA”) Zone Gsadvailable in fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2011 istfar plan’s year ended December 31, 2010
and December 31, 2009, respectively. The zonesstatased on information that we obtained fromt@¢States and is certified by the plan’s
actuary. Among other factors, plans in the red zmeegenerally less than 65% funded. The “FIP/RiUStPending/Implemented” column
indicates if a funding improvement plan (“FIP”) arehabilitation plan (“RP”) is either pending @stbeen implemented.

PPA Zone Status FIP/RP Expiration Date
Employer Pensior April April Status of Collective
Identification Plan 1, 3, Pending/ Surcharge Bargaining
Pension Fund Number Number 2012 2011 Implemented Imposed Agreements
Central States, Southeast and Southwest / 36-
Pension Fund 604424. 001 Rec Rec Implemente Yes 02/28/201.

Based upon the most recent information availaldmfthe trustees managing CSS, our share of thendetuvested benefit liability for
the plan was estimated to be approximately $7.8amiif the withdrawal had occurred in calendariy2@11, an increase from an estimate of
approximately $5.1 million if the withdrawal hadaoered in calendar year 2009. These estimates egdealated by the trustees managing (
Although we believe the most recent plan data atéel from CSS was used in computing this 2011 eséinthe actual withdrawal liability
amount is subject to change based on, among dtimgst the plan’s investment returns and benefilk interest rates, financial difficulty of
other participating employers in the plan suchaskbuptcy, and continued participation by the conypand other employers in the plan, each
of which could impact the ultimate withdrawal liityi. If withdrawal liability were to be triggeredye would have the option to make paymt
over a period of 20 years instead of paying th&dvawal liability in a lump sum.
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HAWKINS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

We made contribution to the plan of approximatéy4$million in fiscal 2012, 2011 and 2010 and exgeanake contributions to the pl
of approximately $0.5 million during fiscal 2013.

Note 9 — Commitments and Contingencies
Leases —We have various operating leases for trucks andl dandl buildings on which some of our operationd@cated. Future
minimum lease payments due under operating leaglesaw initial term of one year or more at April2012 are as follows:

(In thousands) 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Thereafter
Minimum lease payment $70¢  $72&  $71z $657 $59¢ $ 3,381

Total rental expense for the fiscal years 2012,1281d 2010 were as follows:

2012 2011 2010
(In thousands)

Minimum rentals $617 $552 $577
Contingent rental 10z 114 10z
Total rental expens $71¢ $66€ $67¢

Litigation — We are a party from time to time in litigation a@mig in the ordinary course of our business. To dad@e of the litigation
has had a material effect on us. Legal fees agedcwith such matters are expensed as incurred.

On November 3, 2009, ICL Performance Products,“LL(), a chemical supplier to us, filed a lawsuit in theitdd States District Cot
for the Eastern District of Missouri, assertingduie of a contract for the sale of 75% purified ghasic acid in 2009 (the “2009 Contract”).
ICL seeks to recover $7.3 million in damages aredjpdgment interest, and additionally seeks toverds costs and attorneys’ fees. ICL also
claimed that we breached a contract for the sa#b®6 purified phosphoric acid in 2008 (the “200&h€act”). ICL has since dropped its claim
for breach of the 2008 Contract. We have counteneld against ICL alleging that ICL falsely claimdhave a shortage of raw materials that
prevented it from supplying us with the contraagedntity of 75% purified phosphoric acid for 2008e claim that ICL used this alleged
shortage and the threat of discontinued shipmdrit8% purified phosphoric acid to force us to pagreased prices for the remainder of 2008,
and to sign the 2009 Contract. Based on this allegaduct, we have brought four alternate causestidn including: (1) breach of contract,
(2) breach of the implied covenant of good faitl &ir dealing, (3) negligent misrepresentatiord é4) intentional misrepresentation. We seek
to recover $1.5 million in damages, and additionaélek to recover punitive damages, pre- and paigfapent interest, and our costs and
attorneys’ fees. After the completion of discovdrgth parties moved for summary judgment in thewof. On February 7, 2012, the Court
denied both parties’ motions for summary judgmépt. moved for reconsideration of parts of its matior summary judgment. On April 24,
2012, the Court granted ICL’s motion for reconsadien in part, and denied it in part. In its A4, 2012 Memorandum and Order, the Court
interpreted the meaning and effect of a specifiapd in the 2009 Contract, and concluded thateif2009 Contract is a legally enforceable
contract, Hawkins remained obligated to purcha$é 60its requirements for 75% purified phosphoiagrom ICL in 2009. Trial is
scheduled to begin on July 23, 2012. We are net bpredict the ultimate outcome of this litigatidout legal proceedings such as this can
result in substantial costs and divert our manag¢siattention and resources, which may have anmhtalverse effect on our business and
results of operations, including cash flows.
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HAWKINS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Asset Retirement Obligations We have three leases of land (two relate to Haw&itgsone relates to Vertex), and at the end offetws
term (currently 2014 for the Vertex lease and 2fat&he Hawkins leases if the leases are not redgwee have a specified amount of time to
remove the property and buildings. At the end efgpecified amount of time, anything that remaimshe land becomes the property of the
lessor, and the lessor has the option to eithentaiaithe property or remove the property at oyregise. We have not been able to reasonably
estimate the fair value of the asset retiremerigabbns, primarily due to the combination of tleldwing factors: The Hawkins leases do not
expire in the near future; we have a history oéaging the leases with the lessors and currertignéehto do so at expiration of the lease
periods; the lessors do not have a history of teatiig leases with its tenants; and because ibi® fikely than not that the buildings will have
value at the end of the lease life and therefoa; not be removed by either the lessee or thededs® are currently in negotiations with the
landlord regarding the Vertex land lease which egin 2014 and expect to sign a long-term extensiche near future. Therefore, in
accordance with ASC 410-20, “Asset Retirement amdrBnmental Obligations,” we have not recordediaset retirement obligation as of
April 1, 2012. We will continue to monitor the facs surrounding the requirement to record an astietment obligation and will recognize
the fair value of a liability in the period in wihidt is incurred and a reasonable estimate candmem

Note 10 — Income Taxes
The provisions for income taxes for fiscal 20121 2@nd 2010 are as follows:

2012 2011 2010

(In thousands)

Federa— current $ 8,63 $ 9,81¢ $ 6,601

State— current 2,54¢ 2,531 1,63¢
Total current 11,17¢ 12,34¢ 8,23t

Federal— deferred 2,79¢ (69) 5,73¢

State— deferred 31€ (299 1,413
Total deferrec 3,112 (36§) 7,152
Total provision $14,29( $11,98! $15,38

Reconciliations of the provisions for income taxessed on income from continuing operations, toahy@icable federal statutory income
tax rate of 35% are listed below.

2012 2011 2010
Statutory federal income t: 35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
State income taxes, net of federal deduc 5.C 4.7 5.C
ESOP dividend deduction on allocated shi (0.7) (2.2) (2.0
Domestic production deductic (0.9 1.3 (0.6)
Other— net _ 0.2 (0.7 _0.¢
Total 38.6% 37.1% 39.2%
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HAWKINS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

The tax effects of items comprising our net defétex asset (liability) as of April 1, 2012 and A@®, 2011 are as follows:

(In thousands) 2012 2011
Deferred tax asset
Trade receivable $ 184 $ 16z
Stock compensation accrui 601 49C
Other accrual 75€ 91¢
Other 82 16¢
Total deferred tax asse $ 1,62¢ $ 1,74
Deferred tax liabilities
Inventories $ (3,55€) $ (3,190
Prepaid (703) (283)
Excess of tax over book depreciat (10,80 (8,762)
Amortization of intangible: (149 —
Total deferred tax liabilitie $(15,219) $(12,23Y)
Net deferred tax liabilitie $(13,599) $(10,49Y)

As of April 1, 2012, the Company has determined itha more likely than not that the deferred &essets at April 1, 2012 will be realiz
either through future taxable income or reversétsxable temporary differences. As of April 1, 204nd April 3, 2011, there were no
unrecognized tax benefits. Accordingly, a tabuéonciliation from beginning to ending periods @& provided.

We are subject to U.S. federal income tax as veelheome tax of multiple state jurisdictions. Th& years beginning with 2007 remain
open to examination by the Internal Revenue Sereiod with few exceptions, state and local incoaxgurisdictions.

Note 11 — Discontinued Operations

In February 2009, we agreed to sell our inventony entered into a marketing agreement regardingtisaess of our Pharmaceutical
segment, which provided pharmaceutical chemicatstal pharmacies and small-scale pharmaceutiealufacturers. The inventory was sold
in fiscal 2010 for cash of approximately $1.8 noitliwhich approximated its carrying value. The marigagreement provides for annual
payments based on a percentage of gross profiitarefsales up to a maximum of approximately $3lbom. We have no significant
remaining obligations to fulfill under the agreerhe®mounts received under the marketing agreenmeek¢ess of $1.7 million, the carrying
value of intangible assets related to this busiagdise time of sale, have been recorded as aogedale of discontinued operations. Through
fiscal 2012, we have recorded gains of approxinge&l7 million before taxes and expect to accrmerainal amount in fiscal 2013 which will
finalize the agreement. To date, we have receie? &illion in cash under this marketing agreensd expect to collect the remaining $1.3
million in fiscal 2013. The results of the Pharmatieal segment have been reported as discontinpedtions for all periods presented.
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HAWKINS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Note 12 — Segment Information

We have two reportable segments: Industrial andeWhteatment. The accounting policies of the sedsnare the same as those
described in the summary of significant accounpoticies. Product costs and expenses for each sggrebased on actual costs incurred
along with cost allocation of shared and centrdlizenctions. We evaluate performance based ontmofoss from operations before income
taxes not including nonrecurring gains and losReportable segments are defined by product anddfypestomer. Segments are responsible
for the sales, marketing and development of theidpcts and services. The segments do not haveaseaecounting, administration, custol
service or purchasing functions. There are no sefgment sales and no operating segments have pgegated. Given our nature, it is not
practical to disclose revenues from external custsrfor each product or each group of similar potsluNo single customer’revenues amou
to 10% or more of our revenue. No single custoraprasents 10% or more of either of our segmenks$s8ales are primarily within the
United States and all assets are located withitJthited States.

Water

Reportable Segment: Industrial Treatment Total

(In thousands)

Fiscal Year Ended April 1, 201
Sales $251,45: $92,38: $343,83:
Gross profil 40,357 25,511 65,86¢
Operating incom 20,55: 14,557 35,10¢
Identifiable assets $129,78: $23,54: $153,32!

Fiscal Year Ended April 3, 201
Sales $208,72: $88,91% $297,64.
Gross profil 36,93¢ 24,96¢ 61,90:
Operating incom 17,11( 14,85 31,96:
Identifiable assets $121,25( $21,13¢ $142,38¢

Fiscal Year Ended March 28, 20:
Sales $174,90: $82,19¢ $257,09¢
Gross profil 37,28¢ 27,157 64,44
Operating incomi 20,931 17,90: 38,84(
Identifiable assets $ 79,60 $19,15: $ 98,75¢

* Unallocated assets consisting primarily of cash@ash equivalents, investments and prepaid expeveres$48.0 million at April 1
2012, $41.7 million at April 3, 2011 and $60.5 moill at March 28, 2010. Additionally, assets asgediavith the discontinued operations
of the Pharmaceutical segment were $1.2 millioAmatl 1, 2012, $0.9 million at April 3, 2011 and $1million at March 28, 201(
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Note 13 — Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unautid)

(In thousands, except per share data)

Fiscal 2012

First Second Third Fourth
Sales $88,59/ $87,87( $84,16( $83,21(
Gross profil 17,927 18,75( 15,67¢ 13,51:
Operating incomi 10,07( 10,90¢ 8,51¢ 5,617
Income from continuing operations, net of 6,35: 6,717 5,28¢ 3,27:
Income from discontinued operations, net of 374 184 267 232
Net income $ 6,727 $ 6,901 $ 5,552 $ 3,50¢
Basic net income per she $ 0.6F $ 0.67 $ 0.5¢ $ 0.34
Diluted net income per sha $ 0.6F $ 0.67 $ 0.5: $ 0.34

Fiscal 2011

First Second Third Fourth
Sales $74,66¢ $70,39¢ $70,62( $81,957
Gross profil 18,447 17,74 13,72¢ 11,98¢
Operating incomi 11,78¢ 10,92¢ 6,83¢ 2,414
Income from continuing operations, net of 7,33 6,83 4,25¢ 1,891
Income from discontinued operations, net of — — — —
Net income $ 7,337 $ 6,832 $ 4,25¢ $ 1,891
Basic net income per she $ 0.72 $ 0.67 $ 041 $ 0.1¢
Diluted net income per sha $ 0.71 $ 0.6€ $ 0.41 $ 0.1¢
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ITEM9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
Not applicable.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURE:!
Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this AnriR@port on Form 10-K, we conducted an evaluatiodeusupervision and with the
participation of management, including the chief@xtive officer and chief financial officer, of tleéfectiveness of the design and operation of
our disclosure controls and procedures pursuaRttes 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the Exchange Retsed upon that evaluation, our chief
executive officer and chief financial officer conded that our disclosure controls and proceduresfective. Disclosure controls and
procedures are defined by Rules 13a-15(e) and bfe)-df the Exchange Act as controls and othergatores that are designed to ensure that
information required to be disclosed by us in répéiled with the SEC under the Exchange Act iorded, processed, summarized and
reported within the time periods specified in th&CSs rules and forms. Disclosure controls and padoces include, without limitation, controls
and procedures designed to ensure that informagiquired to be disclosed by us in reports filedarmtie Exchange Act is accumulated and
communicated to our management, including our graiexecutive and principal financial officers,mgrson performing similar functions, as
appropriate to allow timely decisions regardinguieed disclosure.

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@gorting as defined in Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the Securities Exchange Auir internal control over financial reporting issigned to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reportingathe preparation of financial statements for exdepurposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. Our internal cdrver financial reporting includes those policé®l procedures that (1) pertain to
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detziljrately and fairly reflect the transactions disghositions of our assets; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdeztessary to permit preparation of the findstaements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that our résaipd expenditures are being made only in accosdaith authorizations of our managen
and directors; and (3) provide reasonable assurageeding prevention or timely detection of unauited acquisition, use or disposition of
our assets that could have a material effect offitlhacial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or détisstatements. Projections of any
evaluation of the effectiveness of internal contreér financial reporting to future periods arejeubto the risk that the controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, bthtealegree of compliance with the policies orcpdures may deteriorate.

Our management assessed the effectiveness ofteumahcontrol over financial reporting as of Afil2012, based on the criteria
described ifnternal Control — Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatft@®S0O”) of the Treadway
Commission. Based on this assessment, manageni@vielsehat our internal control over financial oejing was effective as of April 1, 2012.
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Our independent registered public accounting fiam issued an attestation report on our internarcbover financial reporting for
April 1, 2012. That attestation report is set farttmediately following this management report.

/s/ Patrick H. Hawkin: /s| Kathleen P. Peps
Patrick H. Hawkin: Kathleen P. Pepsl|
Chief Executive Officer and Preside Vice President, Chief Financial Office
June 1, 201; and Treasure
June 1, 201.

Attestation Report of Registered Public Accounting=irm

The attestation report required under this ltemi®gontained in Item 8 of this Annual Report onKL@nder the caption “Report of
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.”

Changes in Internal Control Procedures

There was no change in our internal control ovaaricial reporting during the fourth quarter of 862012 that has materially affected, or
is reasonably likely to materially affect, our imtal control over financial reporting. Beginningfiscal 2012 management has included Vertex
in management’s assessment of the effectivenessrafternal control over financial reporting.

ITEM9B. OTHER INFORMATION
Not Applicable
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PART IlI

Certain information required by Part Il is incorpted by reference from Hawkins’ definitive Prox@at®@ment for the Annual Meeting of
Shareholders to be held on August 2, 2012 (the2Zxbxy Statement”). Except for those portions gjpadly incorporated in this Form 10-K
by reference to the 2012 Proxy Statement, no gtbeions of the 2012 Proxy Statement are deeméeé fided as part of this Form 10-K.

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, AND CORPORATE GOVERANCE
Our executive officers, their ages and offices hatdof May 25, 2012 are set forth below:

Name Age Office

Patrick H. Hawkins 41 Chief Executive Officer and Preside

Kathleen P. Pepsl 57 Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and Treas
Mark A. Beyer 50 Vice Presiden— Operations

Richard G. Ersta 48 Vice President, General Counsel and Secre
Thomas J. Kelle 52 Vice Presiden— Water Treatment Grou

Theresa R. Mora 49 Vice Presiden— Quality and Suppol

John R. Sevenic 54 Vice Presiden— Industrial Groug

Patrick H. Hawkinsvas appointed to serve as our Chief Executive &ffemd President in March 2011. He had previousgntpromote
to the position of President in March 2010 as pathe Board’s succession planning efforts. Heddithe Company in 1992 and served as the
Business Director — Food and Pharmaceuticals, gigo$ie held from 2009 to 2010. Previously he sdras Business Manager — Food and
Co-Extrusion Products from 2007 to 2009 and Sakys&sentative — Food Ingredients from 2002 to 26{&/previously served the Company
in various other capacities, including Plant Mama@eiality Director and Technical Director.

Kathleen P. Pepsltias been the Company’s Vice President, Chief Finh@fficer and Treasurer since February 2008 aad $ecretary
from February 2008 to November 2008. She was tleeltive Vice President and Chief Financial OffiofPNA Holdings, LLC and Katun
Corporation, a supplier of business equipment pads 2003 to 2007, the Vice President of FinaoicEoffman Enclosures, a manufacture
systems enclosures and a subsidiary of Pentair,floen 2002 to 2003, Senior Vice President ance€hRinancial Officer of BMC Industries,
Inc., a manufacturer of lenses and aperture mésks, 2000 to 2001, and Vice President and Contralte/alspar Corporation, a paint and
coatings manufacturer, from 1994 to 2000.

Mark A. Beyeihas been the Company’s Vice President of Operatimte September 2009. Mr. Beyer previously heketrajons
leadership positions with Boston Scientific Corgimna, a medical device manufacturer, and GenersMnc., a diversified food company. He
was self-employed as a consultant from January 20@&ptember 2009.

Richard G. Erstadhas been the Company’s Vice President, General $&bamd Secretary since November 2008. He was @ener
Counsel and Secretary of BUCA, Inc., a restaurantgany, from 2005 to 2008. Mr. Erstad had previpbglen an attorney with the corporate
group of Faegre & Benson LLP, a law firm, from 1966005, where his practice focused on secutléi@sand mergers and acquisitions. He is
a member of the Minnesota Bar.

Thomas J. Kellehas been the Company’s Vice President — Water ifrerait Group since April 2012. Prior to attainingsthbsition,
Mr. Keller held various positions during his $8ar tenure with the Company, most recently ag/iger Treatment General Manager, a pos
he held since June 2011. Previously, Mr. Kellevedras a Regional Manager of the Water Treatmeotiisirom 2002 to 2011.
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Theresa R. Morahas been the Company'’s Vice President — QualitySumqaport since February 2010. Since joining the @amy in
1981, Ms. Moran has served the Company in a vaogppsitions, including Administration OperatioManager from 1999 to 2007 and most
recently as Director — Process Improvement, a jposghe held from 2007 until the time of her proioiot

John R. Sevenidhas been the Company’s Vice President — Indusiialp since May 2000. He was the Business Unit Iganaf
Manufacturing from 1998 to 2000 and was a Salesédemtative with the Company from 1989 to 1998.

“Election of Directors,” “Corporate Governance, datSection 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Qdiance” of the 2011 Proxy
Statement are incorporated herein by reference.

We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct andsBttat applies to all of our directors and empésyéncluding our principal
executive officer, principal financial officer, cwaller and other persons performing similar fuons. We have posted the Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics on our website located at ttpv.hawkinsinc.com. Hawkins’ Code of Business Qartdand Ethics is also available in
print to any shareholder who requests it in writiram our Corporate Secretary. We intend to posbwnwebsite any amendment to, or waiver
from, a provision of our Code of Business Conduntt Ethics that applies to our principal executitfecer, principal financial officer,
controller and other persons performing similarctions within four business days following the datesuch amendment or waiver. We are not
including the information contained on our websisepart of, or incorporating it by reference intos report.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
“Compensation of Executive Officers and Directap$'the 2012 Proxy Statement is incorporated hdvgithis reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS ANDMANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

“Security Ownership of Management and Beneficialm@rghip” and “Equity Compensation Plan Informatiofithe 2012 Proxy
Statement are incorporated herein by this reference

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, ANCDIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
“Election of Directors” and “Related Party Transans” of the 2012 Proxy Statement are incorporateetin by this reference.

ITEM 14.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES
“Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm’'e$7eof the 2012 Proxy Statement is incorporate@ihdy this reference.

50



Table of Contents

ITEM 15.

@(1)

@)(2)

@)(3)

PART IV
EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY

Thefollowing financial statements of Hawkins, Inc. dited as part of this Annual Report on Formn-K:

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfings.

Consolidated Balance Sheets at April 1, 2012 andl 2p2011.

Consolidated Statements of Income for the fiscatyended April 1, 2012, April 3, 2011, and Maréh) 2010.
Consolidated Statements of Sharehol' Equity for the fiscal years ended April 1, 2012 riAB, 2011, and March 28, 201
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the lfigears ended April 1, 2012, April 3, 2011, and dag8, 2010

Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme

FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES OF THE COMPAN®

The additional financial data listed below is il as a schedule to this Annual Report on For-K and should be read
conjunction with the financial statements presemédart Il, Item 8. Schedules not included witls tadditional financial data ha
been omitted because they are not required oretingned information is included in the financiatsiments or the note

The following financial statement schedule for tiseal years 2012, 2011 and 20

Schedule I— Valuation and Qualifying Account

EXHIBITS

The exhibits of this Annual Report on Form-K included herein are set forth on the attachedlixmdex.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Comggaas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, therednlp authorized.

HAWKINS, INC.

Date: June 1, 201 By /s/ Patrick H. Hawkin
Patrick H. Hawkins,
Chief Executive Officer and Preside

POWER OF ATTORNEY

Each of the undersigned directors of the Compaogs dhereby make, constitute and appoint Patridkddvkins and Kathleen P. Pepski,
and either of them, the undersigned’s true andubattorney-infact and agent, acting alone, with full power abstitution, for the undersigni
and in the undersigned’s name, place and steaifjicand affix the undersigned’s name as such tire¢ the Company, in any and all
capacities, to any and all amendments to this AnReaort on Form 10-K and to file the same, witheahibits thereto, and other documents in
connection wherewith, with the Securities and ExgeaCommission, granting unto said attorney-in;fantl either of them, full power and
authority to do and perform each and every actssarg or incidental to the performance and exenwdfdhe powers herein expressly granted.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, this report has also been sifpedalv by the following persons on
behalf of the Company and in the capacities ingitatn the date set forth beside their signature.

/s/ Patrick H. Hawkin Date: June 1, 20:
Patrick H. Hawkins, Chief Executive Officer and
President (Principal Executive Officer) and Diretc

/s/ Kathleen P. Pepski Date: June 1, 20:
Kathleen P. Pepski, Vice President, Chief Finar

Officer, and Treasurer (Principal Financial Officer

and Principal Accounting Office

/s/ John S. McKeo Date: June 1, 20:
John S. McKeon, Director, Chairman of the Bo

/s/ Duane M. Jergenst Date: June 1, 20:
Duane M. Jergenson, Direct

/s/ Daryl |. Skaa Date: June 1, 20:
Daryl I. Skaar, Directo

/s/ James A. Faulconbrid: Date: June 1, 20:
James A. Faulconbridge, Direc!

/s/ James T. Thompst Date: June 1, 20:
James T. Thompson, Direct

/sl Jeffrey L. Wright Date: June 1, 20:
Jeffrey L. Wright, Directo
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Description

SCHEDULE Il
HAWKINS, INC.

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Balance a
Beginning

of Year

Reserve deducted from asset to which it app

Year Ended April 1, 2012
Allowance for doubtful accoun
Year Ended April 3, 2011
Allowance for doubtful accoun
Year Ended March 28, 201
Allowance for doubtful accoun

$ 40¢€
$ 30C

$ 35C
53

Additions

Charged tc

Costs and
Expenses

$ 12C

$ (29

Charged tc

Other

Accounts
(In thousands)

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED APRIL 1, 2012, APRIL 3, 2011, AND MARCH 28, 2010

Deductions

Write- Offs

$ 14

$ 21

Balance a

End of

Year

$ 46C
$ 40¢

$ 30C
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Unless otherwise indicated, all documents incorgar@nto this Annual Report on Form 10-K by refereto a document filed with the

Exhibit Index

SEC are located under file number 0-7647.

Exhibit
3.1
3.2

10.1*

10.2*

10.3*

10.4*

10.5*

10.6*

10.7*
10.8*

10.9*
10.10*
23.1
311
31.2
32.1
32.2
101

*

Description
Amended and Second Restated Articles of Incorpmgtl)

Amended and Restated -Laws.(2)

Description of Consulting Arrangement with JohrivVie@Keon.(3)

Hawkins, Inc. 2004 Omnibus Stock Plan.

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under the Coty's 2004 Omnibus Stock Plan.{

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (Directors) uritde Company’s 2004 Omnibus Stock
Plan.(6)

Form of Nor-Statutory Stock Option Agreement under the Com’s 2004 Omnibus Stoc
Plan.(7)

Form of Performan«-Based Restricted Stock Unit Award Notice and Reistd Stock
Agreement under the Compé's 2004 Omnibus Stock Plan.|

Hawkins, Inc. 2010 Omnibus Incentive Plan.

Form of Performan-Based Unit Award Notice and Restricted Stock Agreetunder th
Compan’s 2010 Omnibus Incentive Plan.(]

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under the Coty’s 2010 Omnibus Incentive Plan.(J
Hawkins, Inc. Executive Severance Plan.(

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing.

Certification by Chief Executive Officer pursuantRule 13-14(a) of the Exchange Ac
Certification by Chief Financial Officer pursuantRule 13-14(a) of the Exchange Ac
Section 1350 Certification by Chief Executive Odfic

Section 1350 Certification by Chief Financial Oéfic

Financial statements from the Annual Report on FborK of Hawkins, Inc. for the period
ended April 1, 2012, filed with the SEC on Jun@Q12, formatted in Extensible Business

Method of Filing
Incorporated by Referent

Incorporated by Referent
Incorporated by Refereni
Incorporated by Referen:

Incorporated by Refereni
Incorporated by Refereni
Incorporated by Referen:

Incorporated by Referen:

Incorporated by Referen:

Incorporated by Refereni
Incorporated by Referent
Incorporated by Referent
Filed Electronically
Filed Electronically
Filed Electronically
Filed Electronically

Filed Electronically

Reporting Language (XBRL); (i) the Condensed Caodatéd Balance Sheets at April 1, 2012
and April 3, 2011, (ii) the Condensed Consolidégéatements of Income for the fiscal years
ended April 1, 2012, April 3, 2011 and March 281@0(iii) the Condensed Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows for the fiscal years edged 1, 2012, April 3, 2011 and March 28,

2010, and (iv) Notes to Condensed ConsolidatednginhStatements Filed Electronically

Management contract or compensation plan or arraagerequired to be filed as an exhibit to this AalnReport on Form -K.
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(1)
(@)

(3)
(4)

(5)
(6)

(7)
(8)
(9)

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the @am’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2!
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EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors
Hawkins, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference irrélggstration statements No. 333-87582 on Fornr&efing to the Hawkins, Inc. Employee
Stock Purchase Plan, as Amended and Restated, Nb72¥61 on Form S-8 relating to the Hawkins, Bxmployee Stock Purchase Plan, 333-
123080 on Form S-8 relating to the Hawkins, Ind20@mnibus Stock Plan, and 333-174735 on Form &aimg to the Hawkins, Inc. 2010
Omnibus Incentive Plan of our report dated Jur012, with respect to the consolidated balancetstodéHawkins, Inc. as of April 1, 2012
and April 3, 2011, the related consolidated statégmef income, shareholdemsuity and comprehensive income (loss), and casVsffor eacl

of the years in the three-year period ended AprdQiL2, the related financial statement schedule the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting as of April 1, 2012, which repappears in the April 1, 2012 annual report omi&0-K of Hawkins, Inc.

/sl KPMG LLP

Minneapolis, Minnesota
June 1, 2012



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

CERTIFICATIONS
[, Patrick H. Hawkins, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Forn-K of Hawkins, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiominy untrue statement of a material fact or amgttate a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisieading with respect to
the period covered by this repc

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this
report;

4. The registrar's other certifying officer and | are responsibledetablishing and maintaining disclosure contamid procedures (i
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))3(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and we ha

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoreaused such disclosure controls and procedoras designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isig prepared

b) designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahedporting to be designe
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
the financial statements for external purposes@oalance with generally accepted accounting plesj

C) evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presenteisineport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintbprocedures, as of the end of the period covgydhis report based on
such evaluation; an

d) disclosed in this report any change in the tegyit's internal control over financial reportirttat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registra’s internal control over financial reportir

5.  The registrars other certifying officer and | have disclosedsddhon our most recent evaluation of internal @miver financia
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the
equivalent functions)

a) all significant deficiencies and material weadges in the design or operation of internal corvelr financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectribgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaad report financial
information; anc

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involveanagement or other employees who have a significéain the
registran’s internal control over financial reportir

Date: June 1, 2012

s/ Patrick H. Hawkin:
Patrick H. Hawkins
Chief Executive Officer and Preside




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

CERTIFICATIONS
[, Kathleen P. Pepski, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Forn-K of Hawkins, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiominy untrue statement of a material fact or amgttate a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisieading with respect to
the period covered by this repc

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this
report;

4. The registrar's other certifying officer and | are responsibledetablishing and maintaining disclosure contamid procedures (i
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))3(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and we ha

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoreaused such disclosure controls and procedoras designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isig prepared

b) designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahedporting to be designe
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
the financial statements for external purposes@oalance with generally accepted accounting plesj

C) evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presenteisineport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintbprocedures, as of the end of the period covgydhis report based on
such evaluation; an

d) disclosed in this report any change in the tegyit's internal control over financial reportirttat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registra’s internal control over financial reportir

5.  The registrars other certifying officer and | have disclosedsddhon our most recent evaluation of internal @miver financia
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the
equivalent functions)

a) all significant deficiencies and material weadges in the design or operation of internal corvelr financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectribgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaad report financial
information; anc

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involveanagement or other employees who have a significéain the
registran’s internal control over financial reportir

Date: June 1, 2012

/sl Kathleen P. Peps
Kathleen P. Peps|
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and Treas




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Hawkins;.lthe Company) on Form 10-K for the period endedl 1, 2012, as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the datehéhe Report), |, Patrick H. Hawkins, Chief Exéwea Officer and President of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 135Gdapted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-OxlepA2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExaeAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fajphgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the
Company.

/s/ Patrick H. Hawkins

Patrick H. Hawkins

Chief Executive Officer and Preside
June 1, 201.




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Hawkins;.lthe Company) on Form 10-K for the period endedl 1, 2012, as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the datehére Report), |, Kathleen P. Pepski, Chief FitiahOfficer of the Company, certify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursa&h906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExaeAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgesents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations of the
Company.

/s/ Kathleen P. Pepski
Kathleen P. Pepsl
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and Traas!

June 1, 201.




